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of them. Now it deducts $195 just for
Pat’'s health care benefits.

CorryHliebert's decision to cut off re-
tiree benefits has forced the Coopers to
find another insurer for Ted and pay
twice what they had been paying for
their insurance. All that now remains
of Ted's pension check at the end of the
month is $16.44. After 43 years of dedi-
cation to hia company—$16.44 a month.

Mr. Cooper suffers from Parkinson's
disease. The Coopers’ combined pre-
scription drug bill is about 3900 per
month. Under Ted's old plan with his
former employer, 80 percent of his pre-
scription drug costs were paid for.
Since CorryHiebert cut off Ted's re-
tiree health benefits, the Coopers now
muat pay half of Ted's prescription
drug costs over and above their month-
ly insurance premiums.

The Coopers had hoped to qualify for
Pennsylvania’'s excellent PACE Pro-
gram, which helps older citizens buy
prescription drugs at a discounted rate.
But like 80 many Americans, they are
caught in the middle class squeeze—too
poor to live comfortably after paying
the bills, but not poor enough to qual-
{fy for State aid.

Unless we take action, the Coopers’
situation is likely to get worse before
it gets better. The weak economy has
forced CorryHiebert to lay off one-third
of its work force. As they continue to
cut costa, what remains of the Coopers’
health care coverage is likely to be the
next thing to be cut.

The Coopers are not alone. Across
the country, workers who have given
decades of their lives to their compa-
nies are being left out in the cold by
cutbacks in retiree health benefits—
benefits they fought for, worked for,
and were promised by their employers.
Retirees at the UNISYS Corp. in Blue
Bell, Pennsylvania and Allegheny
International in Pittsburgh face a
similar crisis.

These are people who showed up to
work every day, paid their taxes, pald
their dues and often took lower wages
in order to receive some peace and se-
curity in retirement. But, in the last
few months, more and more companies
have either reduced retiree health ben-
eflts or dropped coverage altogether—
because costs are out of control.

This problem does not just hurt retir-
ees. It affects all of us. When compa-
nies cut off retiree health benefits,
what they are really doing is shifting
those costs right onto the taxpayers,
because many of those older citizens
will have to turn to Medicaid or even-
tually to Medicare.

It is good news, reported in yester-
day’s Washington Post, that the Presi-
dent's health care proposal will provide
for middle and low-income early retir-
ees * * * exactly the people who are
often encouraged to retire before they
qualify for Medicare and are the most
vulnerable to cutbacks. But between
now and the time reform delivers that
universal coverage, retirees like Ted
Cooper are in danger of being left out
in the cold.
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That 18 why I have introduced the
Retiree Health Benefits Protection
Act, which would make it easier for re-
tirees to defend their health benefits in
court, and it would require companies
to continue to provide benefits, while
the lawyers argue.

That is only a stopgap. The central
battle for health care security i8 now
upon us. And I sense a real spirit of bi-
partisanship, a shared commitment
among Democrats and Republicans,
Congress and the White House, to work
together on a plan that will turn the
right to affordable health care into a
reality for all Americans.

The Coopers celebrated their 46th
wedding anniversary over Labor Day
weekend. I hope that spirit will help us
move forward—and not stop until we
have the job done—so that Pat and Ted
Cooper celebrate their 47th anniver-
sary, secure in the knowledge that
they will not be cut off from the health
care they need and deserve.

It will not be an easy job, I know.
But to any of those who will give us all
the reasons why we cannot change,
why we cannot take action on com-
prehensive reform, the Coopers are two
more faces of the health care crisis who
answer that we cannot afford not to.

Mr. SMITH addressed the Chalir.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. The Senator from New Hampshire
[Mr. SMITH] is recognized.

A NEW POW DOCUMENT FROM
MOSCOwW

Mr. SMITH. Mr. President, I rise
today to speak very briefly about a
matter of great national importance. I
know this is the majority leader's
time. I thank him for giving me just a
couple of minutes to speak on what
should truly be a nonpartisan matter. I
am referring to the issue of those
American POW’s and MIA’s who never
came home from Southeast Asia some
20 years ago when Operation Home-
coming ended on April 1, 1973.

This past weekend in Moacow, the
United States concluded its sixth for-
mal meeting with the Russian Govern-
ment as part of our joint efforts begun
18 months ago to investigate the fate of
POW's from past wars. As a Senate
Member appointed to this Joint Com-
mission by President Bush last year, I
am obligated to report to this Chamber
what transpired in Moscow late last
week.

Gen. Dmitri Volkogonov, a distin-
guished Russian historian and close ad-
viser to President Boris Yeltsin and
head of the Russian side of the Joint
Commission on POW's has turned over
to the United States side another dra-
matic and deeply troubling document
concerning American POW’s from the
Vietnam war which I will briefly de-
scribe in juat a moment.

But first, to put this newly unearthed
document in perspective, let me re-
mind my colleagues that in April of
this year, the Russians officially
turned over to the United States side

September 8, 1993

another document on American POW's
from the Vietnam war. This was a Rus-
sian translation of a 1972 North Viet-
namese politburo presentation which,
in part, referenced the total number of
American POW’'s being held at the
time—a number far greater than those
who returned a few months later at the
end of the war. In fact, it was several
hundred more.

The information in the document
turned over to us in April was acquired
by the Soviet GRU from the North Vi-
etnamese and was officially sent by the
GRU to the Central Committee of the
Communist Party of the Soviet
Unjon—that is President Brezhnev, Mr.
Gromyko. and the top Soviet politburo
members at the time. Moreover, the
character of this document hLas been
authenticated as genuine by the Rus-
slan Government, mainly General
Volkogonov, who met with me in my
office this past June and personally as-
sured me that the presentation to the
North Vietnamese did, In fact, take
place in 1972, even though the Vietnam-
ese denied it when this earlier docu-
ment was discovered this past spring.

I do not want to go into all the de-
tails of this earlier document, because
that is well known, except to say that
I have done a complete analysis of this
document which I have sent directly to
President Clinton and to Ambassador
Toon who heads the United States side
to the Joint Commission. I ask unani-
mous consent to have this analysis ap-
pear in the RECORD following my re-
marks.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, it 18 so or-
dered.

(See exhibit 1.)

Mr. SMITH. Mr. President, the new
archival document just acquired last
week Is a Russian translation of yet
another North Vietnamese politburo
presentation, this one f{rom late De-
cember 1970—almost 3 years before the
end of the war and the return of POW's
at homecoming. In the presentation, a
North Vietnamese personality is in-
forming his politburo, in secret session,
that they are holding 735 captured
American fliers in North Vietnam, and
that the list of 368 American POW's
which they had just provided to the
staff of the Senator from Massachu-
setts, Senator KENNEDY, in Paris in De-
cember 1970, was for diplomatic pur-
poses only and did not represent the
true number of American POW’s held
at the time.

Let me just quickly read the exact
language from that document.

Now, 1 want to stop on one more issue—
about the captured American fllers. The
total number of captured American fllers in
the DRV consists of 735 people. As I have al-
ready stated, we published the names of 368
fiiers. That's our diplomatic step. If the
Americans will agree to withdraw their
forces from South Vietham, we will, for a be-
ginning. return these 368 people to them; and
when the Americans finish withdrawing
their forces, we will give the rest back to
them.
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Now, Mr. President, in 1973, only 591
American POW’'s captured in Southeast
Asia by North Vietnamese forces were
returned by Hanof. Yet, based on this
new information, and when you add in
the pilots captured between 1970 and
1973, several hundred more American
POW's should have been returned by
the North Vietnamese, and were not,
for whatever reason.

I believe 1 know the reason, and 1
would invite my colleagues to closely
examine the hearing record of the com-
mittee I co-chaired last year, the Se-
lect Committee on POW/MIA Affairs,
to find out why, and I am specifically
referring to our hearings on the Paris
peace accords.

I will not take any more of the Sen-
ate's time this morning to discuss this
topic now, except to say that President
Clinton, by law, must decide in the
next few days whether to renew his au-
thority to maintain our trade embargo
against Hanol, or let it expire on Sep-
tember 14. I have communicated my
views to the President in writing on
this matter urging him to maintain
our leverage on Vietnam, so we can f{j-
nally, after all these years, negotiate
with Hanoi{ an honorable solution to
this {ssue—and by honorable, I mean a
solution that will allow Americans and
the POW/MIA families to learn the
truth.

Given these new revelations, Mr.
President, to do anything less, would
in my opinion, constitute abandonment
of our remaining POW’s and MIA's.

Since this newly found document has
just been officially released by the
Pentagon to the National League of
POW/MIA Families and to the press, 1
ask unanimous consent that the offi-
cial English translation of the docu-
ment appear in the RECORD following
my remarks.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, it is so or-
dered.

(See exhibit 2.)

Mr. SMITH. I congratulate the Pen-
tagon and the State Department for
not doing what it did last time
around—which was to classify and
withhold the earlier document from
the American people while at the same
time giving it to the Vietnamese. How-
ever, I think the Defense Department
press talking points on this new docu-
ment are pitiful. I will let that speak
for itself for those who chose to read it.

Thank you, Mr. President, and my
thanks to President Yeltsin and Gen-
eral Volkogonov for their efforts to get
this information to us. And let me also
thank my colleagues who served with
me on the Select Committee on POW/
MIA Affairs. As those Members know,
the efforts of our committee were in-
strumental laat year in forming the
Joint Commission on POW’s with Rus-
sla—specifically our first trip to Mos-
cow in February 1992, and the subse-
quent staff visits.

I hope the rest of my colleagues will
closely review this matter.

1 yield the floor.
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EXHIBIT 1
REPORT TO AMBASSADOR MALCOLM TOON,
CHAIRMAN OF THE UNITED STATES SIDE OF
THE JOINT UNITED STATES/RUSSIAN COMMIS-
SION ON POW/MIA'S FROM UNITED STATES
SENATOR BOB SMITH, COMMISSIONER, JULY
21, 1993
(An interim analysis of the 1972 translation
of a North Vietnamess report concerning
United States POW's discovered in 1993 in
the archives of the former Soviet Union
and subsequently provided to the United
States side of the Joint United States/Rus-
slan Commission on POW/MIA's)
1. EXECUTIVE BUMMARY

A. Dr. Stephen Morris, the man who first
discovered the North Vietnamese report on
POWs in Russian language form, deserves
special thanks from the United States of
America. Genera) Dmitri Volkogonov, head
of the Russian side to the U.S/Russian Joint
Commission on POW/MIAS, likewise deserves
our gratitude for continuing to open the ar-
chives of the former Soviet Union in an ef-
fort to resolve outstanding humanitarian is-
sues such as the fate of our POWs and MIAs.

B. The report found by Dr. Morris contains
numerous statements which can be corrobo-
rated by U.S. knowledge. Because of this, I
am convinced the presentation took place in
1972. In the absence of convincing evidence to
the contrary from Vietnam, I can only as-
sume that from 1964 to 1973, the leadership of
North Vietnam withheld the total number
and identity of American POWs in Vietnam,
Laos, and Cambodia over whom it had direct
control.

C. The position of the Socialist Republic of
Vietnam that the report in Russian language
form is a “pure fabrication' which they
‘‘completely reject’ 18 unacceptable to me,
and I believe, the majority of the American
people. This matter is still wide open.

D. The U.S. Government does not know the
fate of many of its missing personnel in Viet-
nam and Laos, and the U.8. Government
should stop believing that it knows the fate
of just about everybody. It's time people
study the facts, even if it means revisiting
*old’ issues.

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE REPORT AND ITS
CONTENTS

The text of the report which has been pro-
vided to the United States 18 in Russian lan-
guage form. However, the cover page to the
report io Russlan language 18 dated “‘Mos-
cow—1972"" and clearly states that the report
is & “‘translation from Vietnamese into Rus-
sian.” The Russian language cover indicates
that the translation was dons by the General
Staff of the Armed Forces of the USSR, Main
Intelligence Directorate (GRU).

The GRU cover page to the report de-
scribes the enclosed report as a “‘Report of
the Deputy Chief of the General Staff of the
VNA (Vietnamese People's Army) General-
Lieutenant Tran Van Quang at the Politburo
Meeting of the TSK PTV 15 September 1972.""
(TsKk PTV 1is Russian for ‘“Tsentralnij
Komitet Partii Trudyashchikhsya V'etnama’
or in english, ‘Central Committee of the
Workers Party of Vietnam.')

Summary of the Report's Contents

General Quang begins the report by indi-
cating that "today’’ he will describe meas-
ures which have been worked out for imple-
menting the resolytions of the 22rd Plenum
of the Centra)l Cornmittee which he supports
and that he will give an evaluation of vic-
tories which have been gained by North Viet-
nam during the war from *‘the period from 30
March 72 to the present.’’

He indicates that the military situation is
developing favorably, and he discloses that
several meetings have occurred between the
United States and Vietnam '‘aimed at devel-
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oping measures on resolving the Vietnam
issue. . . ." General Quang indicates that
proposals offered by the U.S. side had been
rejected.

He then discloses that secret meetings in
Parts have taken place between the U.8. and
North Vietnam, and that these meetings
have once again shown the '‘deranged nature
of the proposals put forward by the Amer-
ican side.’’

Quang goes on to indicate that North Viet-
npam bad maintalned its position during
thess secret meetings, '‘the essence of which
includes the following: if the U.8. truly
wants to resolve the Vietnam issue, then
above all else, it must refuse to support the
Nguyen Van Thisu regime, and only after-
wards will we engage in a discussion about a
cease-fire. This demand is the main tenet in
our ‘conflict against the American
imperalists. If Nixon continues adhering to
his policy of ‘Vietnamization’ of the war and
desires to leave the present Saigon Govern-
ment of Thieu in power, then the peace
nogotistions between us and the U.8. will
not yjeld any resuits.”

General Quang then reflects that *“during
our general offensive’”, progress had clearly
been made, but there had also been short-
comings and mistakes. Quang mentions that
he had previously discussed the lessons
learned from these mistakes with the Polit-
buro, and that he would now report on "‘a
number of positions regarding the scope of
our future offensive.”

He then goes into considerable detail on
how North Vietnam was succeeding in their
plan to win over selected South Vietnamese
personalities and ‘‘representatives of the
Saigon authorities,” and that several meet-
ings had taken place. General Quang dis-
cusses the details of separate meetings with
five South Vietnamese personalities, and
how these persons had beocome critical of
Thieu and American policies and actions in
Vietnamn. Quang sums up by indicating they
were also making progress in winning over
people from the provinces and towns in the
South, and as a result, ‘‘we see that we have
chosen the correct course. This is also clear-
ly indicated in the resolutions of the 23rd
Plenum of the Central Committes.”

Quang indicates that the *Bs Be' plan had
been developed and was being implemented
ip the South. He states that the goals of the
plan were the elimination of people who *‘op-
pose our course’’, to include those in leader-
ship positions at the province-district level
and above, as well as disruptive activities
against the Saigon governing apparatus, and
the acquisition of materials which *“‘testify
to crimes by Americans and their puppets
with regard to the Vietnamese people . . .”
Quang states they must also attract neutral
forces to their side, and describes an incident

"in which they had succeeded in the *‘demor-

alization of the puppet army’ through prop-
aganda.

Quang next describes results which ““we in
the propaganda organization recently
achieved among the High Command staff,
right up to Saigon Army generals'’ and he
describes meetings they had with two South
Vietnamese army generals.

Quang points out that dividing enemy
ranks and lowering their will to resist was
the goal of the ‘Ba Be'’ plan and that this
was essential to ‘‘help us to attain successes
at the Paris negotiations on Vietnam. '
Quang stresses that forces needed to be in-
serted as soon as possible so that implemen-
tation of this goal would proceed ‘“‘in the
month of October in accordance with indl-
cated deadlines.”

Quang concludes with a final pitch for the
need to fully implement the “*Ba Be' plan by
pointing out that "“in the Paris negotiations
on Vietnam we have met with a sertes of dif-
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ficulties in recent days.”’ As a result of ‘‘ex-
changing opinions in private meetings with
Kissinger”, Quang emphasizes that Nixon
was continuing to be stubborn in ‘‘continu-
ing the aggressive war and maintaining the
status quo.”” He states that because of this
stubbornness, ‘“‘peaceful solution of the Viet-
nam issue is not possible . . . that is why we
are resolved to carry out the Ba Be plan.”
Quang stresses that this would be their *‘first
military thrust on the front aimed at resolv-
ing the complicated political issue at the
present stage.”

Finally, in reference to the Ba Be plan,
Quang reports that there had beea a con-
ferenos “yesterday’’ with the cadres respon-
sible for carrying out the plan and that ev-
erything had been worked out. He concludes
this section of the report stating. “‘In sum-
ming up wbat is stated above, it can be sald
that we are going fn the right direction in
carrying out our plans. . .

The pext part of the report concerns the
number of American POWs captured and
being held in North Vietnam. Quang states
he is reporting “‘today’’ on this subject as
the Politbaro had asked him to. Quang be-
gins this section by stating that their work
with American POWs had been contemplated
by the Politburo in previous decisions ‘‘such
as decision No. 21 DBT dated 3-3-71, and deci-
sion No. 21 K dated 44-72." He indicates that
both of these earlier decisions concerned ex-
ploitation of American POWs. He refers to
comrades ‘‘among us” who differ from the
position of the Politburo, and urges them to
understand that ths issue is very complex.

He then begins to tell them that they bave
captured a wvery large pumber of American
POWs since *56 August 1964 and that the
total number has not been made public. He
states, At today’'s Politburo session, 1 will
report to you, Comrades, the exact number"’
of American POW3.

General Quang reports that the total num-
ber of American POWs captured to date
“comprises 1206 people.”” He then breaks this
number down by country and categories of
American servioemen. (Note: For a detailed
analysts of the figures presented by Quang,
please soe Section VI of this interim anal-
ysis.)

Following this numerical breakdown,
Quang reports that these American POWs
are presently in 11 prisons in North Vietnam.
He states that after the Son Tay raid 1n 1970,
they had expanded the number of prisons to
11 from 4 large prisons which they used to
have, and that each prison now had approxi-
mately 100 prisoners.

Quang next indicates that they are holding
16 ‘“‘colonels’ together from whom they are
attempting to extract material and informa-
tion, and that 104 “‘lieutenant colonels’ were
being held in another location where they
were also attempting to extract information
from them. Pinally, he states that they have
235 “majors’ concentrated tn two other loca-
tions, and that the rest of the POWs were in
other prisons.

General Quang then describes a group of
368 American POWs who were showing ‘‘pro-
gressive” attitudes. and that these POWs
would be released first if the progressive peo-
ples of the world were successful in forcing
Nixon to move toward a resolution of the po-
1itical tssue,

Quang informs his comrades that “we are
carrying oat work with this category of
POWs to explain to them the aggressive Da-
ture of the war being conducted by the Nixon
administration and the nature of the Nguyen
Van Thieu regime, and also to make them
understand the unjust character of this war
which 18 inflicting great damage on the
American people. One can assert that this
group of POWs is progressive tn thelir politi-
cal views."
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Quang then reports that there are an addt-
tional 372 American POWs who hold ‘“‘neu-
tral” views and 465 American POWs who hold
‘“‘reactionary’ views. He points out that the
senior officers held “‘reactionary’ views, i.e.:
‘‘they do not condemn Nixon, they do not
protest his policies, and they distort our
course of action.” Quang rationalizes that
this is because they are from rich families.

General Quang emphasizes the need to con-
tinue their work to make the American
POWs understand that U.S. aggressiveness in
the war and Nixon’s stubborobness only
delays their return to their homeland.

Quang notes that they would soon be free-
ing severnl POWs to ‘‘put pressure on the
Nixon administration, observe his reaction
and the reaction of the Americab public, as
well as to demonstrate our good intentions
tn this matter.””

He goes on to point out the three prin-
ciples on which ‘‘we may resolve’ the issue
of the American POWs. The U.S. must com-
ply with a cease-fire and the removal of
Thieu, and that while the U.S. was doing
this, they would free ‘‘several more aviators
from the number who are progressively in-
clined.”” Next, '‘Nixon must compensate
North Vietnam for the great damage in-
flicted on it by this destructive war.” Quang
states that Nixon continues to resist resolv-
ing the Vietnamess question, thereby delay-
ing the resolution of the American POW
issue.

Quang then repeats that while he has ex-
plained this issue to the Politburo, there are
still comrades who don’'t understapd the
American POW situation correctly. He
stresses that the POW issue had to be re-
solved in the context of setting the military
and political aspect of the Vietnamese prob-
len. He emphasizes that they ‘‘would lose
mach® if they took the path of concession
toward America and release the POWs.

According to Quang, holding 1205 American
POWs had “created certain difficulties for
us,” but he goes on to point out that this
wWas a great loss to the American military,
particularly the Air Force, and that they
were succeeding in collecting important data
from the POWs. Quang states he is convinced
this is the oorrect position.

He then indicates that 1205 American
POWSs was a large number, and that “‘we have
offictally published a 1ist of only 368" Amer-
ican POWs. He rationalizes that the U.8.
government can only speculate on the true
number of POWs based on their losses, and
that, therefore, ‘‘we are keeping the number
(of Americans POWs) secret.’

Quang again points out that there were
comrades questioning the policy belpng im-
plemented concerning American POWs. He
stresses that ‘‘this is pot political bargaining
bat rather a key condition and serlous argu-
ment for successful resclution of the Viet-
nam problem. That is why the matter of the
American POWs has great significance.
Quang then condemns the “‘mistaken views
of individuals among us on this matter.”

Quang concludes the section of the report
on the American POWs by stating, 'We flirm-
ly hold to our position—when the American
government resolves the political and mill-
tary issues on all three fronts of Indochina,
we will set free all American POWs. We con-
sider this a very correct course."'

The next part of the report is General
Quang's concluding comments on the entire
presentation he has given to the Politburo.
He mentions the areas he has reported on,
stating:

“Today on assignment of the Sapreme
Command, the State Defense Counci] and the
Military Committee of the Politburo, I re-
ported to you on these matters so that the
Politburo could study these problems, could
express its opinion op them, and set forth
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forms and methods for their resolution.”” He
mentions that soon they will be developing
new military plans for 1973, but for now they
were *‘occupled with matters of mobilization
and training of reinforcemsents fcr all three
Indochinese fronts. We should mobilize
250,000 men, 200,000 of whick would be sent to
South Vietnam and 50,000 to Laos and Cam-
bodia.”” He states that at the mext politburo
session, he would report on the present situ-
ation in Laos and Cambodia.

His fina) statement {s an impassjoned de-
fense of their present course of action, em-
phasizing that the course of the party is cor-
rect, and that they are fuifilling the ideals of
Marxism-Leninism, the desires of Ho Chi
Minh, and freedom for the Fatherlands.

‘The last sentence of the report reads:

**To the current session of the Politburo I
wish successful work. I have compieted the
pressntation of the report.”

III. ACQUISITION OF THE REPORT BY THE UNTTED
STATES

On March 10, 1992, the New York Times re-
ported that the Woodrow Wilson Inter-
national Center for Scholars in Washington,
D.C. was working to set up a conference with
officials of the Center for Storage of Contem-
porary Documentation, formerly the Ar-
chives of the Central Committee of the Com-
munist Party of the Soviet Union, located on
II'lynka St. in Moscow. The planning of the
conference was led by Willlam Taubman, a
political sclence professor at Amherst Col-
lege. The conferencs was described by Pro-
fessor Taubman as ‘‘the first step in opening
up the archives.”” The effort was to be funded
largely by a $1 million grant over three years
from the MacArthur Foundation and was to
be known as the ‘‘Cold War History Project.”

The maior projects which were to be the
focus of the research were: 1.) the Berlin Cri-
sis of 1958-61; 2.) the Cuban Missile Crisis of
1962: 3.) the Soviet interventions in Hungeary
in 1956 and in Czechoslovakia tn 1968; and 4.)
the Korean war.

Ironically, during this same perlod, Sen-
ator Kerry and myself had traveled to Mos-
cow as co-chairmen of the Senate Select
Committee on POW/MIA Affairs in an effort
to lay the groundwork for the Joint Commis-
sion on POW/MIAs which had been proposed
by the Russians in January.

By the end of the year, the Joint Commit-
tee was making dramatic progress in archi-
val research and oral interviews. However, in
retrospect, the unique arrangement between
the Russian Government and the Wilson Cen-
ter. which permitted access to classified
records to selected scholars, held a greater,
more immediate promise for the discovery of
records on the Vietnam War.

In September, 1992, the Wilson Center sub-
mitted to the Russians a list of the Amer-
ican researchers who would be participating
in the review of classified Russlan archived
materials in Moscow at the Center for the
Storage of Contemporary Documentation.

One of the scholars who later worked side
by side with researchers at the Wilson Cen-
ter project was Dr. Stephen J. Morris, a 44-
yeoar old researcher at the Center for Inter-
national Affairs apd the Russian Research
Center at Harvard University in Cambridge.
Massachusetts. In April, 1992, Dr. Morris had
traveled to Moscow to find out about the
possibility of archival access. He was told
that access was only being allowed for the
period pre-1953, and so he began to research
the Soviet-Vietnamese relationship in the
early years, to include Ho Chi Minh’s young-
er years in Moscow (1330's).

In October. 1992, while doing research in
the pre-1953 archives, he heard about the Wil-
son Center project at the other archive and
went over to speak with some of the re-
searchers there. In Dr. Morris’ own words, *'1
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discovered what the arrangement was and
that they had nobody workicg on the history
of the Vietnam War. so I immediately deter-
mined that I had to become part of this
project because it was vital to the work I
was doing.""

By December, 1992. Dr. Morris was back in
Moscow working side by side with other
scholars on the Wilson Center team with the
permission of the Russian Archives Adminis-
tration. He focused his snergy on gaining ac-
cess to ‘selected ciassified records of the
Central Committes of the Commugist Party
of the Soviet Un!cu concerning Vietnam

Under the arraagement between the Wilson
Center and the Can:ier for the Storage of
Contemporary Documentation, he requested
access on December 14th to a set of ‘‘Top Se-
cret’’ records entitied, “Section of the
Centra] Committes of the Communbist Party
of the Soviet Union for Commubications
with Communist and Workers Parties of So-
clalist Countries.’” The documents, compris-
ing some 2,000 pages in ten folders. were pro-
vided to Dr. Morris the next day by Yurt
Constantinovich Maaloy. the Deputy Direc-
tor of the archives. and the number three
man at this particular archive. In Japuary,
1993, in the couree of reviewing the docu-
ments in detail, he came across a 1972 report
by General Tran Van Quang which contained
detailed information on American POWs in
North Vietoam.

Realizing the significance of bhis discovery,
he arranged for a ccpy of the report to be
given to him and returned to the United
States. He contacied a colleague of his who
worked as a Congressional staffer in the
House of Representatives. Through this con-
tact, he was able to arrange a meeting with
Sandy Berger, Deputy Natlonal Security Ad-
visor to President Bili Clinton on February
11, 1993. At the same time. he contacted a
colleague at Harvard. Dr. Richard Flpes. a
Balrd Professor of History. Dr. Pipes con-
tacted Secretary of Defense Les Aspin. Fol-
lowing Dr. Morris’ meeting with Sandy
Berger, Secretary Aspin wrote a letter to Dr.
Pipes on February 16, 1993 indicating that he
was aware of the discovery of the document
and the information would be pursued. Dr.
Morris had also met with former Natlonal
Security Advisor, Dr. Zbigniew Brzezinski,
during this period to allow him to review the
document and provide his analvsis to him.

In late February, 1993, Task Force Russia,
the Pentagon's support élement for the U.S.
side of the Joint U.S./Russian Commission
on POW/MIAS, learned of the disccvery of the
document by Dr. Morris. Colonel Stu
Herrington. Deputy Director of Task Force
Kussla, contacted Dr. Morris in an attempt
to learn more about the document. During
this period. Mr. Edward W. Ross. the Acting
Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense for
POW/MIA Affairs, also contacted Dr. Morris
concerning the document.

Op March 18, 1933, the Director of Task
Force Russia. General Bernard Loeffke, and
Norman Cass. an assistant to DASD Ross,
traveled to Moscow and were made aware by
Lt. Colionel Osipov of the Russlan side to the
Joint Commission of the existence of the
document. General Loeffke, Mr. Cass. and
two members of Task Force Russia stationed
in Maoscow, were able to briefiy review ex-
cerpted pages from the document but were
not provided with an actual copy of the re-
port. They were allowed to xerox the cover
page of the record grcup ccntaining the re-
port. The hope was expressed by the U.S. side
that ths document could be provided to the
U.S. during a scheduled meeting of the Joint
Commission tn Moscow on April 8, 1993.

On March 22, 1983, the U.S. side to the
Joint Commission was briefed on the discov-
ery of the document during a scheduled
meeting in preparation for the April 8, 1993
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meeting tn Moscow. On March 30, 1993, a de-
tailed cable on the contents of the document
which had been briefly reviewed by Task
Force Russia was sent to Washington from
the U.S5. Embassy in Moscow.

On March 31, 1993. I wrote the President's
Natlonal Security Advisor. Anthony Lake.
urging bhim to have President Clinton raise
with President Yeltsin the issue of access to
GRU records on the Vietham War, and par-
ticularly documerts pertaining to the -:m.
bers of POWs held by Vietnpam. The weekend
of April 3rd and 4th, Presidents Yeltsin and
Clinton held their summit in Vancouver. The
head of the Russian side to the Joint Com-
mission, General Volkogonov., has subse-
quently indicated that the subject of POWs
was raised at this summit, although I do not
know if spacific requasts were made pertain-
ing to access to the Vietnam-related docu-
ments ibD question.

On April 8, 1993, the U S. side to the Joint
Commission was provided with an excerpt
dealing with the subject of American POWs
from the 1972 report initially discovered by
Dr. Morris. The excerpts from the report
were passsd to the U.S. side by General
Volkognonov during a formal commission
mesting ip the Kremlin in Moscow. In pass-
ing the report. General Volkogonov stated:

‘‘It’s a delicate issue, but we can’t be quiet
about it any looger, since it's a bgmani-
tarian issue. The official list reported 368
Americans. But there were 1205, in fact. This
document has very detailed information, the
number of places—I1! camps—and so forth.
We will continue our search. but you see. the
Central Committee of the USSR knew the
exact number of POWs in Indochina. This in-
formation was known, although, in the past,
the Central Committee denied any knowl-
edge. But we are talking about men’'s fates—
a humanitartian issue. There 18 no political
spin—we want tc help the familfes.”

On the weekend of Aprll 9-11th, Dr. Morris
returned to Moscow to attempt to gain ac-
cess to additional archival documents. He al-
lowed a reporter from the New York Times
in Moscow, Celestine Bohien, to review the
report and write a story on it which was pub-
lished 1n the New York Times on Monday.
April 12, 1993. Two days earlier on April 10th,
the Russian newspaper Izvestia reported that
the document had been discussed at the
Joint Commission meeting on April 8th.

In addition to the New York Times. the
Washington Times also disclosed the exist-
ence of the document orr April 12th after an
interview with Dr. Morris from Moscow on
April 11th. :

On the morning of April 12th, the Vietnam-
ese Mission at the United Nations in New
York was provided with a copy of the report
by the Department of State and Department
of Defense.

On April 20. 1993, a team of 8 Task Force
Russia, Defense Intelligence Agency. and
senior, policy Defense Department personnel
met with Dr. Morris. During this meeting.
Dr. Morris provided a copy of a complete
Russian language version of General Quang's
September. 1972 report which was subse-
quently translated into English by Task
Force Russia at the Pentagon.

On Junpe 21, 1993, a full copy of the same re-
port by Genera}l-Quang ip Russlan language
form was formally provided to the United
States by Russian General Volkogonov.

IV. AUTHENTICITY OF THE REPORT IN RUSS!AN

LANGUAGE FORM

There Is no douht whatever that the 1972
report to the North Vietnamese Politburo in
Russian language form is authentic—that is,
it was clearly acquired by the GRU from the
Vietnamese in 1972, translated into Russian,
and forwarded to the Central Committee of
the Communist Party of the Soviet Union.
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where it was found more than 20 vears later
by Dr. Morris. There is overwheiming evi-
dence which conclusively proves this poict,
some of which is outlined below.

Moreover., the manner in which the docu-
ment was discovered by Dr. Stephen Morris
in the Center for Storage of Contemporary
Documentation (formerly the archives cf the
Central Committee) in Moscow indicates au-
thenticity. According to Dr. Morris:

"1 bad requested in mid-December a sertes
of about 10 fles relating to ths avents of
1972. a pivotal year in the histcry of the
Vietnam War. One of those files was a flle of
the Soviet military. The description on the
front tells you nothing about what is ins!de.
It read something like Reports of the Gen-
eral Staff of the Armed Forces of the Soviet
Ubnion about Political and Military Condt-
tions in North and South Vietnam.  When |
opened the f1le I saw lots of documents which
all were very interesting although not all of
them gave me a very exciting acccunt of
what was inside. A lot of them were very
general descriptions. But reading through
that flle, a flle which may have contained a
dozen different documents—one of 10 files I'd
ordered on the same day—I found a lot of in-
teresting. new information.”

‘‘One was a report by a Lieutenant General
Tran Van Quang. who was the deputy chief of
staff for the North Vietnamese army. report-
ing to his politburo. There were two docu-
ments by this general. The first was dated
June 26 and the second, September 15. I read
the flle chronologically and when I got to his
first report I was excited because he had new
information about the military situation at
that time which nobody new, including 8
staggering account of the losses they had
sustained up to that time, which went far be-
yond what American analysts of the Viet-
nam War had estimated . . . it is important
to understand this entire file in order to
evaluate the particular document. This was
a flle of the Soviet military and much of it
was Soviet military intelligence. They had a
very close relationship with the Vietnamese
military.”

*‘1 was excited by documents, for example,
signed by the chairman of the Joint Chiefs in
Russia at that time. which talked of polit-
buro meetings about the future overall strat-
egy in the war and the conflict between dif-
ference members of the leadership in Viet-
pam and who took what side in the debate.
He gave precise locations of the meetlngs
and so on.™

*“This was information of an extremely in-
timate kind, and when it's signed off by the
chairman of the Soviet army, then I cob-
cluded that there must be ‘a very rellable
source in the Vietnamese leadership who is
providing information to the Soviet m!li-
tary. Before I had found this document I had
come to this conclusion. The first document,
by Lieutenant General Quang—and it was
one of three documents in" the flle which
were Vietnamese documents—was a report of
speeches made duripng 1972."

*I could see that the Soviets were acqualr-
fog secret reports from the Vietnamese lead-
ership even before I came to this particular
document. And when I came to the docu-
ment, the second report by General Quang.
dated September 15. I was fascinated because
it has a fairly bland description, it talked
about things I did not know about-—secret
events. For example, the clandestine meet-
ings between representatives of the North
Vietnamese military and security apparatus
with the South Vietnamese politicians for
the purpose of feeling them out as to their
possible future participation in a coalition
government, which was Communist strategy
up untl] that moment. . . .»’

*. .. Adam Ulam (of Harvard) also says it
looks to him like an authentic document.
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They are apecialists on the Soviet Union and
they know what Soviet documents should
look like. Mark Kramer, who is also an affil-
iate at Harvard, was with me in the archives
when 1 discovered it. I showed him part of
the document and asked his assistance in de-
ciphering the handwritten Russian (see Ap-
pendix). So he knew that I had it even while
1 was in the archive. Kramer had been read-
ing a lot more documents than I had and had
been their a lot longer and knew the proce-
dure whereby. I. like everyone else in the
project, acquired documents, so it was incon-
ceivable that this was not authentic.”

By February, 1993, Dr. Morris had allowed
colleagues of his to review the document (as
described in Section II of this Interim Anal-
ysis). On February 8, 1993, Dr. Richard Pipes,
a Professor of History at Harvard wrote a
letter stating. **The document, and the ac-
companying letter to the Central Committes
of the Communist Party of the Soviet Union
by P. Ivashutin, are, in my opinion, authen-
tic and trustworthy.”

Following the official turn-over of the doc-
ument to the U.S. on April 8th and the subse-
quent disclosure of the report in the press,
several comments were made which further
vouch for the document’'s authenticity.

On April 13, 1993, former U.8. National Se-
curity Advisors Dr. Zbigniew Brzezinski and
Dr. Henry Kissinger made these comments
on the MacNeil/Lehrer Newshour concerning
the document's authenticity:

MACNEIL. Dr. Briezinski, you've stated
publicly, and you're quoted in the New York
Times as belleving the document is genuine.
What convinces you?

BRZEZINSKI. Its style, its content, the cover
note to the Soviet Politburo. One would have
to assume a really very complex Byzantine
conspiracy to reach the conclusion that this
is not an authentic Soviet document based
on a Vietnamese document.

MACNEIL. Dr. Kissinger, what do you think
on the question of authenticity, first of all,
of the document?

KISSINGER. . . . 1 agree with Zbig (Dr.
Brzezinski) that those parts that I know
something about have an authentic ring . . .
f that document is authentic, and it 18 hard
to imagine who would have forged it, for
what purpose, then 1 think an enormous
crime has been committed. and I do not see
how we can proceed in normalizing relations
until this is fully cleared up . . . 1 don't see
how we can normalize relations or ease con-
ditions in international agencies until we
have cleared up this issue.

(Note: Comments by Kissinger and
Brzezinski on the accuracy of the contents of
the report, as opposed to the authenticity of
the document, are covered io Section VI,
Part A, of this Interim Analysis.)

On April 14, 1993, Russian General Dmitrl
Volkogonov, who formally passed the docu-
ment to the U.S., was asked about its au-
thenticity and responded as follows:

*‘We have no doubt this is a real document,
a genuine one. This document has been
signed by the Chairman of the Joint Chiefs
of Staff of Vietnam and it had been officlally
transferred to the Soviet intelligence . . .
These documents were absolutely Top Secret
and thus it cannot attest to the fact that
they are false documents . . . This is an old
document. For almost & qQuarter of a cen-
tury, over 20 years, it has been in existence.
We have found it in & part of the archives of
the Central Committee of the party where
they never had any fabricated documents.
They didn’'t have such a habit. I personally
don't doubt at all the authenticity and the
genuine character of this document.””

On April 15, 1993, according to General
Vessey, tha President’'s Emissary to Hanol
on the POW/MIA Issue, “I talked to General
Volkogonov . ... and he and Ambassador

Malcolm Toon assured me that they believed
it was an authentic document of the vintage
of1972. . .»

On April 16, 1993, former KGB official Gen-
eral Oleg Kalugin told the New York Dally
News in Moscow that ‘‘there is no reason
why the (present Russian) government would
make it up.”

On April 20, 1993, a team of 8 Task Force
Russia, Defense Intelligence Agency, and
senior policy Defense Department personnei
met with Dr. Morris. During this meeting,
Dr. Morris provided a copy of a complete
Russian language version of General Quang's
September., 1972 report which was subse-
quently translated into English by Task
Force Russia at the Pentagon. The conclu-
sion reached by the Office of Deputy Assist-
ant Secretary of Defense for POW/MIA Af-
fairs concerning ‘“‘suthenticity’ is described
in a memorandum dated the same day as the
meeting and reads:

*‘CONCLUSIONS: By all accounts this doc-
ument, now more than ever, appears to be
authentic . . . All indications are that the
Russian archives of the GRU should have a
copy of the original Vietnamese version. In
order to resolve the issue, we still need to
obtain the Vietnamese version.™

On April 21, 1983, General Volkogonov
again remarked on the authenticity of the
document, stating to the New York Times in
Moscow, "My opinjon is that the document
is completely authentic.’” Again, in a May 12,
1993 letter to me, General Volkogonov stat-
ed, I am convinced that the document
which we passed to the American side on
April 8, 1993 is genuine. True. I cannot guar-
antee that its content is a true reflection of
past reality. Only the Vietnamese can know
this.”

On April 22, 1993, the Russian archive
spokesman for the Contemporary Docu-
mentation Center was reported by Associ-
ated Press as saying that ‘‘archive officlals
believe the document is authentic.”

On May 26, 1993, General Volkogonov reit-
erated his belief that the document was gen-
uine in a meeting with Task Force Russia
and the political counseior from the U.S.
Embassy in Moscow.

In a meeting with me on June 22, 1993, Gen-
eral Volkogonov again reiterated his posi-
tion that this was an authentic document,
and only the Vietnamese know if everything
General Quang reported to his Politburo was
accurate. General Volkogonov stressed dur-
ing this meeting that there was no reason for
the GRU to believe that the document was
not accurate, stating why would they lie in
a Top Secret message to their own Politburo.

In a letter to me dated Jume 22, 1993,
former National Security Advisor and Sec-
retary of State Dr. Henry A. Kissinger stat-
ed, “From everything I have heard, including
from Russian sources, the document which
was found in the Russian archives is authen-
tic—that is, it 13 a document apparently ac-
quired by the GRU from the Vietnamese.’

Finally, the fact that there was some deep-
rooted opposition on the Russian side to the
Joint Commission on turning the document
over to the U.S. side adds credibtlity to the
fact that this was considered to be an au-
thentic document by GRU.

V. THE NEED FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

FROM RUSSIA

To date, the U.S. side has not been pro-
vided with coples of any additional docu-
mented information which pertains to the
1972 North Vietnamese report in Russian lan-
guage form. However, General Volkogonov
assures us that he i3 working bard to find ad-
ditional documentation or information, and
that it is *‘real detective work.” I have no
doubt, however, that there are literally
thousands of pages in the GRU and Politburo
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archives dealing with the Vietnam War. It is
well-known that there are volumes of infor-
mation dealing with Boviet relations with
their allied countries, and we would be fool-
ish to assume that the Soviets did not have
both open and clandestine sources placed in
Hanot during the war to collect information.
in addition to the Soviet military presence.
General Volkogonov has openly acknowl-
edged the reality that there were ‘“highly
placed Soviet advisors in Vietnam who
could have obtained the Quang report, and
we have only scratched the surface with the
discovery of this document.

The following is a synopsis of information
which 1 believe Russia kas the capacity to
provide to the U.S. pertaining to this report
and the POW issue in Vietnam at the end of
the war.

1. First, in December, 1992, Dr. Morris re-
viewed an additional report by North Viet-
namese General Quang dated June 28, 1972,
but was not able to obtain an actual copy of
this report. However, he was able to take ex-
tensive notes on the contents of this second
Quang report which he subsequently pro-
vided to the U.S. Government. The report
was presented at a North Vietnamese polit-
buro session on June 26, 1972, and General
Quang is listed as “'Deputy Chief of Btaff" of
the Vietnamese National Army. the same po-
sition described in the September, 1972 re-
port. It is imperative for the U.S. to obtain
a complete copy of this report is order to
fully evaluate current Vietnamese state-
ments that General Quang never addressed
the politburo and did oot bold the title of
Deputy Chief of Staff in 1972. The U.S. for-
mally requested this document on June 4.
1993 and 1 asked General Volkogonov for a
copy on June 22, 1993.

This second report is contained in the
same flle as the September 15, 1972 report.
The file is labeled, *'File No. 5, Inventory No.
62, Case No. 478"

2. Next, the cover note to the Soviet Polit-
buro enclosing the Russian transliation of the
report was signed by P. Ivashutin, head of
the Soviet GRU, now deceased. Undoubtedly,
there were several individuals within the
GRU apparatus who were involved in the
preparation of this report for Ivashutin's sig-
nature. Moreover, the fact that it had been
decided by the GRU to send the report to the
Central Committee indicates the importance
of the preparation of this product and the
need for it to have been accurate.

We can reasonably assume that analysts,
translators, their supervisors, and others
were part of the *‘quality control” process in
passing the report to the Politburo. More-
over, the possibility exists that the GRU
footnotes were added to the document in
Moscow, as they attempted to determine ad-
ditional background information on some of
the South Vietnamese personalities men-
tioned in the report, such as Dinh Dzu.
(Note: There are two Dinh Dzu's described in
the report, although the GRU mistakenly re-
fers to them both as the same person. The
U.S., therefore, needs to request access to
GRU officlals in Moscow who reasonably
would have been involved with the prepara-
tion of this report in 1972, such as retired
Southeast Asia desk officers and analysts.

The actual note by the GRU head to the
Soviet Politburo begins with, *'I am report-
tng: Translation of the report of. . . .” The
tone of the cover memo and its identifica-
tion marklings suggests that this was but coe
of many GRU intelligence reports on the sit-
uation in North Vietnamn and the status of
the war there. Therefore, we can assume that
thers are other reports and speeches from
North Vietnamese party and military mem-
bers. More importantly, thts was clearly not
the first time the GRU has obtained informa-

tion from the North Vietnamese politburo. 1f
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it was, this would almost certainly have
been mentioned in the cover memo.

There is a note on Ivashutin’s cover sheet
to the Quang report which he sent to his su-
periors at the Politburo. The handwritten
note back to him is signed by Konstantin
Katushev and is written on his cover memo.
In other words, as in many offices, & memo
is sent into the bosa, and the memo comes
back out with-the boes’ response, often band-
written on the memo that had been sent to
him. Konstantin Katushev was a Secretary
of the Ceatral Committee of the Communist
Party. His response to Ivashutin, presumably
after reviewing the entire Quang report is
“‘please prepare a short report for the Polit-
buro of the TsK KPSS (Central Committes of
the Communist Party of the Soviet Unlon)
about the Prisoners of War.” If this is what
transpired, thea the GRU would have pre-
pared a ssparate report in response to the

olitburo’s request focusing on their analy-
sis of the American POW information in the
Quang report. The U.S. side needs to request

3. Ivaghutin's cover memo to the Polithuro
lists the Quang report as an enclosure la-
beled as *‘1 brochure (entry No. 14253, Top Se-
cret, Copy No. §.) This 1s a good starting
point for pursaing additional information
about this report and other reports-on Viet-
nam seat to the Soviet Politburo by the
GRU. This may also shed light on the man-
ner in which similar reports were collected
in Vietnam.-These reports may be traceable
by examining GRU logs with lower and high-
er refereace numbers close to No. 14253.

4. The Soviets undoubtedly obtained infor-
mation from interrogations of American
POWSs in Vietnam, sither directly or through
the Vietnamese. U.S. evidence indicates that
in some cases, the Soviets submitted de-
talled technical questions for the Vietnam-
ese to ask American POWs. In other cases,
there:is evidence that the Soviets directly
participatad in thess interrogations. The
GRU must be asked to provide these records
to the United States, as they can shed light
ob the American POW/MIA situation in Viet-
nam during the war.

5. General Volkoconov has mentioned the
possibility that the speech from General
Quang may bave been translated from a re-
corded tape of the speech. The GRU should
be asked whethar any of their collection ac-
tivities in Vistnam during this period in-
volved .recording -devices. If the U.S. intel-
ligence commaunity belleves this is a real
possibility, then the matter should be far-
ther pursued by the U.S. side to the Joint
Commission with Russia.

6. Geperal Volkogonov indicated in & meet-
ing on June 22, 1963, that the Russian side to
the Joint Commission raijsed the document
with a Russian interpreter who might have
worked with it in Hanol. The interpreter, ac-
cording to General Volkogonov, stated he
translated thousands of documents over ten
years and had no way of remembering the
documants he translated. He would translate
docaments and then go on to the next ome,
according to General Volkogonov. The U.8.
should aggressively push for access to perti-
nent POW/MIA information in these ‘‘thou-
sands’” of other reports translated in Hanof,
to include direct access to the former Soviet
translators in Hanol referenced by Genonl
Volkogonov.

7. Acoording to a November 16, 1972 docu-
ment from the Russian archives, former So-
viet Army Chief of Staff N. Ogarkov spoke of
», . .the expanded meeting of the Politburo
of the Central Committss of the (North) Vi-
etnamese Workers Party, which took place
at the beginning of October this year in the
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provincs of Hoa Bink. . .’ The U.S. has inde-
pendent information indicating Politburo
sesslons were held at the ‘‘alternate’ meet-
ing place at Doc Cun in Hoa Binh Province.
The U.S. should request independent con-
firmation from the Russian side of the dates
on which North Vietnamese politburo ses-
sions were reported to have taken place in
1972

8. In response to a request by the Senate
Select Committee on POW/MIA Affairs in
November, 1981, former North Vietnamese
Colonel Bul Tin informed the committee in
writing of people in ths Soviet Union who
might know about the POW tssue. He specifi-
cally réferenced & *“‘Mr. Andre (Andrew),
transiator, Russian-Vistnamese in charge of
relations with Vietnam, working io the De-
fedbe Ministry (before 1967, he was in the
State Department in Moscow.”)

The U.8. should seek to further identify
and interview the “Mr. Andre™ referenced by
Bui Tin in an effort to shed additional light
on the Quang report md other POW/MIA re-
lated matters.

(Note: Ironically, Tin also referenced Gen-
eral Tran Van- Quang as someone who-

“should” know about Russian involvement
with American POWs during the war—and
this was over one year before the Russtan
language report by General Quang had been
found in the archives in Moscow.)

Conclusion: I believe the 1972 North VIeb-
namese report by General Quang in Russian
language form is perhaps the most direct
plece of evidence obtained by the US. to
date which shows the extent of GRU collec-
tion activities during the Vietnam War. The
numbering system and the manner in which -
the report was provided to the Politburo
clearly indicate that GRU flles contain addi-
tional information. There is no question that
the information exists. The question is how
do we convince the GRU, KGB, and others to
be more cooperative in rapidly providing all
relevant information to the United States.

V1. GENERAL INTERIM ANALYSIS OF THE
CONTENTS OF THE REPORT

Before an examination of specific state-
ments i the report, I would like to note my
coacurrence with the position of Task Force
Russia, mainly that the internal structure,
toaal unity, and philosophbical development
of the Russian language text are such that it
appears to be a translation of an autheatic
North Vietnamese presentation made by
General Quang.

In addition. an oumuuclon of speeches,
reports, and articles by General Quang from
1966 to 1968 show that there are compelling
similarities to the speaking style and phra-
seclogy exemplified in the September, 1973
presentation (le: references to protecting the
fatherland against the American impe-
rialists, stc. . . )

{Note: Coples of the (onowlng speeches and
articles by General Quang are contained at
the end of this Interim Analysis following
the english-language version of the %1572 re-
port)

January, .1966—" 'The Big Role of Militia-
men and Self-Defense Corpsmen in the War
Against U.S. Imperialists "

July 7, 1966—**Three Great E.!;pomnces of
Militia and Self Defense Forces."

January, 1978—'“The New Sugeo(t.be!wv
olution and the New Stage of Development of
Local Military Work.”

January, 1888—'Om the Direction of the
1968 Spring Offensive and Uprising in Tri
Thien-Hue (Twenty years ago)."” .

The reader of this report is encouraged to

. examine the .contents of the above-men-

tioned speeches and articles. and compare
them with both the September 15, 1972 pree-
entation by General Quang and the excerpts
from the June 26, 1972 presentation by Gen-
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eral Quang now being reviewed by the U.S.
Government.)

In evaluating this report and its collection
by the Soviets, it is also critical to study the
facts pertalning to the close relationship be-
tween the Soviets and North Viethamese
durtng the war. It strains credulity to be-
lieve that President Nixon and President
Brezhnev, Dr. Kissinger and Mr. Gromyko
would have spent the time they. did in 1872

proposals pertaloing to the war in
Vietnam 1if they did not belisve the Soviets
had a close relationship with North Vietnam.
Indeed, the record will show that Dr. Kissin-
ger had extensive discussions with the Sovi-
ots in Moscow concerning the Vietnam War
on May 24, 26, 30, and September 13, 1972, just
twe days before the reported date of the
Quang presentation. Declassified Whits
House/NSC transcripts show that the U.S.
was literally presenting propoeals to the So-
viets which were then discussed in detail and
passed on to the North Vietnamese.

In Hanol, there also continued to be a close
relationship with the Soviets, as evidenced
by numerous cables and reports uncovered in
Raussian archives from the former Sovist Em-
bassy in Hanol. all of which are available
from my office. In fact, these documents
show that only the Soviets and the Chinese
were briefed in Hanol on the substance of the
fina] Kissinger-Le Duc Tho talks in January,
1973 just days before the Paris agreement
was signed. The record shows, that because of
the sensitivity involved, oply the Soviets
and Chinese were briefed, and not other so-
clalist allles.

This close relationship continues to the
present day as evidenced by the May 25, 193
trip to Hanol by Russian Deputy Prime Min-
ister Yurly Yarov and his meeting with the
General Secretary of the Commaunist Party
of Vietham Do Muoi. According to the offi-
cial Vietnam News Agency. during the meet~
ing, Secretary Do Muol “reaffirmed that the
Vietnamese people bave unswervingly been

- thankfaul to the formerly Soviet and now

Russian people for their invaluable assist-
nncooxcandedtot.hemmthelrmtand
present efforts.”
Finally, it should be noted that General
himself recognized the closeness of
the relationship by visiting the Soviet-Viet-
namess Culture House in past years to com-
memorate Soviet Communist holidays and
anniversaries. These visits by General Quang
were publicized in Communist publications
available to thé U.S. Government. Perhaps,
the most fascinating aspect of all is the fact
that former North Vietnamess Colonel Bui
Tin,. a prominent North Vietnamese spokes-

man at the end of the war, indicated to our .

Select Committes in writing in 1951 before
this document ever surfaced that General
Quang was someone to talk to concerning.
Soviet involvement with American POWs
during the war.

The following interim apalysis of state-
ments by General Tran Van Quang in the
1972 report to the North Vietnamese polit-
buro is in the order in which they appear in
the presentation, from beginning to end.
(Note: A summary of the report appears in
Section II of this Interim Analysis, and the
entire English translation of the report. from
Russian appears in Section X),

A. Statements which are corroborated by U.S.

wartime and postwar knowledge.

1. North Vietnam's Policy Toward (ke
South.—General Quang's description of the
North Vietnamese government policy toward
the South. particularly North Vietnam's in-
flitration efforts and contacts with South

. Vietnamese leaders, is-corroborated by U.S.

intelligence information. If - it has .not al-
ready been done, this intelligence should be
immediately assembled and publicly dis-
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closed by the U.S. intelligence community.
In addition, former National Security Ad-
viser Dr. Henry Kissinger stated to me In a
letter dated June 22, 19¢3: “‘Having read the
document carefully I can only say thst the
description of the North Vietnamese govern-
ment policy toward the South . . . conforms
with what we knew to be their position at
the time."”

3. The Secret Meetings in Paris During this
Period.—Qeneral Quang refers in his Septem-
ber 15, 1972 presentation to the secret meet-
ings in Paris between North Vietnam and the
United States which had taken place, and

that North Vietnam had been rejecting the -

U.S. proposals. He also states that they have
met with a series of difficulties in the Paris
meetings “‘in recent days™ and he refers to
the exchanging of opinions in private meet-
ings between North Vietnam and Kissinger
where they understood *‘Ntxon as before is
being stubborn on settling the situation.”

While the existence of earlier secret Kis-
singer-Le Duc Tho talks in Paris had been
publicly disclosed by President Nixon on
January 25.~1972, it is noteworthy that sev-
eral meetings had, indeed, taken place "'in
recent days.”

According to declassified White House/Na-
tional Security Council records provided to
the Senate Select: Committes on POW/MIA
Affairs, private meetings in Paris took place
during this pertod op the following dates:

July 19, 1972, August 1, 1972. August 15,
1972, September 15, 1972, S8eptamber 26, 1972,
September 27, 1072.

Thus, three, potentially four. meetings had
been comploted at the time of the presen-
%on by General Quang on September 15,

Dr. Kissinger’s analysis of General Quang's
references_ to the status of the negotiations
shows that Quang was accurate. Dr. Kissin-
ger. the principle U.S. negotiator during
these private meetings. stated the following -
during MacNeil/Lehrer on April 13, 1993:

“When they (General Quang) described
what their negotiating tactics were, those
were the tactics they were using in negotiat-
ing with us . . . they say in this document
that their proposals were first a cease-fire
and the overthrow of President Thieu, after
which they would use the prisoners to nego-
tiate whatever other concerns they had.
Now, as of the date of that document, those _
were their proposals. A month later they

- changed it but I could see if you make a re-
port to the Politburo in the middle of Sep-
tember and you want to summarize what the
negotiating position is, this was exactly the
negotiating position they had as of the date
of that document. To be precise, on October
8th, about three woeks after this document,
they changed their position, but up to that
time, they had insisted on exactly the condi-
tions that are in that document, and they
certainly wouldn't have told anybody that
they were proposing to change it. That (ne-
gotiating position) could only have been
known to a very few people. And they didn't
change it for another three to four weeks.’

Additionally, on June 22, 1993, Dr. Kissin-
ger stated to me in writing, “Having read
the document carefully 1 can only say that
the description of . . . the North's position
on pegotiations with the United States con-
forms with what we knew to be their posi-
tion at the time."” .

Quang’s comments are highly accurate in
referencing the North Vietnamese negotiat-
ing in important ways which can be corrobo-
rated by U.S. documents. For instance, Gen-
eral Quang notes “We intend to resolve the
American POW {ssue in the following man-
per: 1. The U.8. Government must dem-
onstrate compliance, ie: a cease-flre and the
removal of Nguyen Van Thieu, and then both
sides can begin discussing the matter of re-
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turning POWs to the Nixon government. 2.
While the American side is resolving the
above-mentioned problems. we can free sev-
eral more aviators from the number who are
progressively inclined. . . . 3. Nixon must
compensate North Vietnam for the great
damage inflicted on it by this destructive
war. Here then are the principles on the
basis of which we may resolve the American
POW f{ssue . . . when the American govern-
ment resolves the political and military is-
sues obn all three fronts of Indochina, we will
set free all American POWs."”

In the August 15th Paris meeting, the

North Vietnamese had rejected the January
25th US/GVN proposal on the grounds that it
would leave Thieu in power. We kmow this
becausoe a declassified White House tram-
script of an August 17th meeting between
Kissinger and Thieu reads:—Kissinger to
Thieu:—*‘At our last meeting, be (Le Duc
Tho) said they had not accepted the January
25th proposal becauss you would still be in
power—this is not upreasonable from their
point of view . . . Thieu: ‘About the pris-
oners of war, you have nothing?" Kissinger:
“I think they are keeping the prisoners as
On August 18th, according to & transcript
of another mesting between Kissinger and
Thieu, Dr. Kissinger stated to Thien: *“They
(the North Vietnamese) think they can use
the prisoners of war to overthrow you.” -
Additionally, a declassified White House
transcript of a Paris meeting on September

36, 1972 (11 days after the date on the Quang-

report) notes the following comment by Le
Duc Tho: ‘Regarding the question of pris-
oners of war, ag I told you last time, that the
American prisoners in Cambodia. there are
none. In Laos, there are very few. But if you
satisfactorily solve the political question
and the question of remnuons then we can
find an understanding.”

The next day, Dr. Kissinger sent a 'rop Se- -
cret memo to Genersl Halg at the White
House stating. ‘‘We met with DRV delegates
for a total of 11 hours on September 28 and
Z7. There was no significant progress . . . we
held firm on our basic program including po-
ltical questions ... in other -areas, it
emerged clearly both from DRV- document
and discussions that we remun far apart on
a number of major issues .

Thus, it can be seen t.hat. t.he US was pri-
vately being told by the North Viethamese -
in Paris precisely the same things General
Quang discussed with the Politburo during
the same time period. The U.8. was holding
firm, or being ‘stubborn’’ as Quang ref-

erenced, and the U.8. was hearing first hand -

in private from Le Duc Tho exactly what
Quang had stated their position to be. It is
important to Dote that neither the content-
of Quang's report or the content of the Paris
meetings in August/September had been pub-
licly disclosed at the time, yet they matched
i{n many important respects. This adds con-
siderable merit to the case that a presen-
tation was, in fact, prepared or presented by
General Quang on these matters in Septem-
ber 1972, despite recent Vietnamese denials.

3. The "'BA BE' Plan—The description of -

the BA BE plan is described in the report by
General Quang in considerable detail. It is
obviously a plan which General Quang felt
was essential to achieving North Vietnam's
objectives in the war, and from the report,
he appears to have had personal involvement
in designing the plan. The plan itself called
for the elimination of political figures in the
South at the province-district level and
above, the organization of other disruptive
events in the South, and the acquisition of

' materials to prove the ‘‘crimes’ of Ameri-

cans. The plan was to be ca.rﬂed out through
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the insertion into the South -of specially
trained cadre from the North.

Unclassified records of U.8. interviews
with Vietnamese personnel show that Gen-
oeral Tran Van Quang had been Chief of the
North Vietnamese Enemy Proselyting De-
partment (EPD), part of the General Politi-
cal Directorate, in the mid-1960's, and he had
headed a conference of the EPD in 1963. Dur-
ing this earlier period, he had supervised of-
forts to integrate stay-behinds of the French
Foreign Legion into the “Viet-Dung™ assas-
sination teams. Strategy seesioovs and con-
ferences were held at the Enemy Proselyting

‘camp at “BA BE" lake in Bac Thal (formerly

Bac Kan) Province. North Vietnam. It is
probable, though not yet confirmed, that the
training conference referenced by Quang in
the report as having taken place on SBeptem-
ber 4, 1972 was at “BA BE" lake, and this is
why the plan was called the “BA BE™ plan.
There is certainly a precedent-and evidence
that similar assassination planning and
training took place at *'BA BE™ Jake as late
a8 1963. Moreover, General Quang is belleved
by some to have been involved in directing
specific massacres carried out during the
Vietnam War. Finally, informstion from
other U.8. sources indicates that the plan de-
scribed above came to the attention of the

United States during 1970 or 1971, and the’

Phoenix vincial Reconnaissance
Units were deployed to counter it.

4. The Reference to the Impending Release-

of Some POWs—QGenersl: Quang makes ref-
erence in his presentation to the fact that
several POWs would shortly be released ‘'to
put pressure on the Nixon Administration,
observe his reaction and the reaction of the
American public, as well as to demonstrate
our good intentions in this matter.” .

On July 25, 1972, actress and anti-war ac-
tivist Jane Fonda had returned from a trip
to Hanol where she had met with seven
POWs. Immediately following Fonda's trip,

former Attorney General and antl-war activ- -

ist Ramsey Clark visited North Vietnam for
two weeks. Upon his return, Clark stated to
the press on August 14; 1972, ] urged them
(the North Vietnamese) to release some pris-
oners, and I say frankly; I think they will—
a few, 1 don’t know when. But what they tell
you—and you know I have a little difficulty
arguing with it—is ‘‘we can't release pilots
when pilots are bombing our children.”

On September 2, 1972 (the 27 anniversary of
the DRV), the Chief Political Directorate of
North Vietnam's People’s Army aanouncad
that thres U.S. POWs would be freed *‘as a
sign of gratitude to that part of the progres-
sive American public which has been calling
for the immediate end to U.8. aggression in
Vietnam.” The announcement further stated
the POWs would be turned over to a peace
group that would come to Hanol from the
United States.

On- Sopumber 17, 1973, there was a cere-

mony in Hanol connected with the release of

the pliots. In attepdance were anti-war ac-
tivists Cora Weiss and David Dolllncor from
the United States.

On September 25, 1972, the piiots were re-
leased to Cora Weiss and the néxt day the
three pilots departed Hano! with “Weiss,
Dellinger, and two other anti-war dem-
onstrators (Coffin 'and Falk). The POWs and
the anti-war group members departed Hanoil
aboard a Boviet Aerofiot plane which flew

them to China and across the Soviet Unlon

to Moscow where they changed planes for
New York, arriving in the United States on
September 28th. This was the first release of

U.S. POWs by North Vlotnun ln over three

years (since 1969). VA
Thus, it is certainly clear that General
Quang's reference to the impending release

to several POWSs, and the reasons they were _

dolng this, tracks with known events, and
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lends credibility to the fact that General
Quang made this presentation on September
15, 1972.

6. “For now, we have officially published a
list of only 38 POWs"—QGeneral Quang's
statement that North Vietnam had, to date,
only published a list of the names of 368
POWs is sotirely accurate and tracks with
known eveuts.

On December 22, 1970, the North Vietnam-
ese delagate to the Paris Peace talks, Mal
Van Bo, released to representatives of U.S.

Senators Kennedy and Fulbright a list of the -

names of 398 POWs, 20 of whom were listed as

(Note: a detalled analysis of the total 1205
pumber of American POWs referenced by
Mmtoumlns.cuonvnofm
Interim Analysis.)

& The amignmeat of General Quang to ad-
dress the Politburo—In the concluding para-
graphs of General Quang’s report, he states,
“Today ob assignment of the Supreme Com-

Hi

Committee of the Politburo, I re-
you on these matters so that Polit-
study these problems, could ex-
‘opinion on them, and set forth
methods for their resolution.”
by U.8. intelligence that
tary Affairs Party Commit-
under the Politburo’s super-
well known by U.8. intel-
Gensral Quang was, in fact, a
Military Alfalrs
tary Committee of
lerenced in the 1972 re-
to have been a close

R
gigié“is
§rE

; 5

g

§-§§
afd
i1
i1
5
g
§

Mmmmuhummm!’omburo
oh assignment of the Military Committee of

- the Politburo, of which he was a member. I -

do not know his relation to the “Supreme
Command” or the “State Defense Council.”

7. The Report's labeling of General Quang
as Deputy Chisf of Stalf—Aocording to the
records of the U.8. Joint Public Affairs Of-
noo(JUSPAO)nttheU&nmbusymsu-

language version of the report based on U.S.

It is also important to note Russian Gen-
eral Volkogonov's recent statements in June
1903, that “the important point is that Gen-
eral Quang mads the reports in question, not
ths job position which he held at the specifio
time. This is a technicality.”

Ths Russian side has recently relayed in-
formation to the U.8. side which has been
represented as the “latest information from
GRU." Acoording to the Russians, Quang was
actually a Lisutenant General in command
of the Fourth Military District (Voyenniy
Okrug), but was frequently sent to South
Vietnam to evaluate activities and returned
to deliver reports to the Politburo. The Rus-
sians have said that while the cover page to
the document (by GRU) may be technically
in error, he, nonetheless, did make the re-
ports of June 28, 1973 and S8sptember 15, 1972,
(Bource: July 2, 193 Memorandum from U.8.
side to the Joint Commission stationed in
Mosocow based on a July 2, 1993mooungwlt.h
the Russian side in Moscow.)

the State Defense Council and the
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(Note: For more information on this.
please refer to Section VIII of this Interim
Analysis—*Biographical Information on
General Tran Van Quang.")

B. Errors in the Soviet GRU Translation of
the Report. —Thé GRU report on the trans-
lation of General Quang’s report to the
North Vietnamess politburo contains, an its
surfaos, very minor errors. For instanoe, at
the beginning of the report, a GRU footnote
improperly identifies a former South Viet-
namese politioal figure as a South Vietnam-
ot genoral who also had a similar name.
However, the South Vietnameas General is

‘properly referred to later in the report. In

another ares, resclutions of the 3ird Plenum
of the Central Committes referenced by Gen-
eral Quang io 1972 would not colncide with a
report by General Quang in 1968 which ref-
erences the 2ist Plenum as Invtnc taken
place in October, 1973.
Inshort.theaoormnmdmupeumgof
certain names of POWs, or. perhaps even
their rank, can be readily dizsmissed, in my
opinion, as typical errors in the collection
and translation of the report from Vietnam-
eos¢ to Russian, especially if thousands of re-
ports were being transiated during the war.
GRU errors would not change the fact that
this report on the subjects discussed appears
likely to have indeed been presented by Tran
Van Quang to the Politburo in 1973. They
also do not change the fact that the pumber
1,206 in 1,206 -in Russian, Vietnamess, and
English, and thus these numbers should not
be cast aside as translation problems, or pos-
sibly pertaining to- South Vietnamese and
‘Thai soldiers as well. It is clear upon reading
Gensral Quang’s entire report, as well as all
bis other speeches over the years, that he
has consistently and clearly distinguished
when he is discussing American POWs and
not the “puppets’ from the South. Moreover,
we ahould not losé sight of the startling Vi-

_otnamess posgition maintained to date that

this report, or any report remotely resem-
bling it. was never given to their Politburo
in 1972, It is-truly bard to believe that the
Sovists would report to their Politburo on a
Vietnimess Politburo sessions that never
took place.

Finally, the minor errors in the GRU
translation of the report certainly do not
change the basic theme of the report—ie: the
withholding of the true number of American
POWs by North Vietnam for negotiating ad-
vantage.

. VI DETAILED INTERIM ANALYSIS OF THE NUM-

BERS, DESCRIPTIONS, AND LOCATIONS OF

AMERICAN POWS RRFERENCRD IN THE REPORT

I would like to begin this ssction by stress-
ing that I completely concur with the follow-
ing analytical assessment prepared by Task
Foroe Russia in May, 1953—"“The U.8. should
condact a zero-based review of all informsa-
tion about U.8. POWs and consider alter-
native models to explain the fates of unao-
oounted for servicemen ranging from the
poesible existence of a parallel system of
prison camps t0 & reassessment of Vietnam-
o8¢ bohavior and motivation. The barden of
disproving the document's assertions does
not rest with either the U.8. or Russian gov-

ernments but with the Government of Viet- -

pam. :
‘Therefors, 1 have concentrated my review
in this section on what the United States

-knéw and did not know as of the date of Gen-

eral Quang's presentation in September,
19T2—1e: a *‘sero-based review.” )
. .A. Numbers _

The following statements by General
Quang ooncerning the capture and detention
of 1,206 American personnel between 1964 and
1972 are examined below in the order t.hey ap-

pear (to the extent possible).
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1. At first, the number of American POWs
was not large and world public opinion paid
1ttle attention to them.”

‘There 15 no doubt that this statement fis
aocurate. A review of a listing of POW/MIAs
by year of loss demonstrates this fact. More
importantly, efforts by private U.8. citizens
and U.8. Government officials (most notably
Secretary of Defense Mel Laird, H. Ross
Perot, 8ybll Stockdale and other family
members) to bring public attention to the
plight of POWs did not actively begin until
late 1969. For many years, the families had
been told not to talk publicly about their
loved ones held in Hanoi. Even some U.5. of-
flolals had been urged to do likewise.

For example, during a September 21, 1992
hearing of the Senats Select Committee on
POW/MIA Affairs, former Secretary of De-
fense (during this period) Mel Laird stated:

“It was the attitude of our Government at

- that time that we should not discuss the

POW/MIA question, and it was felt that it
would somehow hamper the negotiations, the
secret negotiations which were going on at
the time in Paris. It was my attitude that
should be changed . . . I was urged by many
people not to go pubnc on this particular
issue. I remember Ambassador Harriman
coming to see me urging me not to go public,
but I felt as Secretary of Defense, it was my
responsibility. These were my people.”

2. *“The number of American POWs in
North Vietnam grew day by day after 5 Au-
gust 1964 when the U.S. imperialists started
massive air bombing and off-shore bombard-
ment by the 7th fleet of the territory of
North Vietnam, and. after having expanded
their aggression onto the territories of Laos
and Vietnam.”

While most Americans do not agree with
General Quang's references to American
“imperialism" and “‘aggression.’’ the state-
ment, taken as a whole, has a basis in fact
and 1s well-docamented by the United States

U.8. Navy, becams the first American serv-
iceman to be shot down over North Vietnam.

-His capture was kept secret by North Viet-

nam, md Vietnam News Agency bulletin

had seen hlsputchuu opén and the U.S.
Navy assumed him to be lost at sea. Lt. Al-
varez was held by North Vietnam for the
next nine years and was released during Op-
eration Homecoming in 1973.

3. *'. . . the 1,205 American POWs presently
in prisons of North Vietnam include 624 avi-
ators captured in North Vietnam; 143 avi-
ators captured in South Vietnam: 47 diver-
sjonists and other American servicemen cap-
tared in North Vietnam: 391 American serv-
foemen of other categories, which include 283

kopt in the prisons of North: Vietoam rep-
resents a large number. For now, we have of-
fiolally published a list of only 368 POWs.
The rest are not acknowledged. The U.S.
Government is aware of this, but they do not
know the exact number of POWs, or they
perhaps oply assume an approximate pumber
based on their losses. Therefore, in accord-
ance with the instructions from the Polit-
buro, we are keeping the npumber secrat.’

(a) What do U.S. statistics from 197273
show? General Quang’s presentation of these
figures was made in September, 1972. U.S
statistics from April 1, 1973 (five months ear-
lier) give the following information: 412
missing U.8. personnel in NVN and 388 cap-
tured U.8, personnel in NVN for a total of 800
POW/MIAs in North Vietnam: 456 missing

* U.8. personnel in SVN and 86 captured-U.S.-
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personnel in SVN for a total of 553 POW/
MIAs in South Vietnam (including those lost
in Cambodia); 278 missing U.S. personnel
from Laos and 6§ captured U.S. personnel
from Laos for a total of 283 POW/MIAs in
Laos. These figures total 1,635 POW/MIAs,
and exclude several hundred U.S. personne]
listed as killed in action/body not recovered
as of April 1, 1972,

From April 1, 1972 to September 14, 1972
(the day before Quang’s report), the U.S. Jost
an additional 56 POW/MIAs in South Viet-
nam/Cambodia, 7 MIAs in Laos, and 97 POW/
MIAs in North Vietnam, for a total of 160 ad-
ditional POW/MIAs. 1,635+160=1,795 POW/
MIAs as of the day before General Quang’s
report. In addition, thers were several hun-
dred more servicemen listed as KIA/BNR. Al)-
though the majority of these are confirmed
dead, we have subsequently learned that a
few were accurstely captured.

Taken in the aggregats, General Quang’s
total figure of 1,206 U.8. POWs is, therefore,
piausible based on an analysis of U.8. statls-
tics alone. It 13 also plausible when the fig-
ures are further broken down.

For example, General Quang refers to a
combined total of 671 Americans captured in
North Vietnam. As of September 14, 1972, the
U.S. listed 897 Americans as captured and
missing in North Vietnam. At Operation
Homecoming (12 February-1 April 1973), 406
POWs captured and held in North Vietnam
as of Beptember 15, 1972 returned home alive.
Using General Quang’s September figure of
6§71 POWs captured in North Vietnam, this
means a remaining 268 POWs, referred to as
captured and beld in North Vietnam as of
September 15, 1972, were not returned at
Homecoming five months later.

Moreover, immediately following Oper-
ation Homecoming, the U.B. Government
Msted approximately 430 unacocounted for
POW/MIAs Jost in North Vietnam prior to
Septamber 15, 1972. For General Quang's re-
maining 266 figure to be accurats, it wounld
mean that slightly more than half of the 430
unacoounted for POW/MIAs lost in North

in isolation from the 457 POWSs captured In
the North by the end of the war who were al-
Jowed to return during Homecoming. Whea &

quent U.S. evidence, as well as the number
from the 430 for whom there was evidence of
survival or capture (to tnclude recent evi-
dence obtained by the U.S. in Vietnam), we
can arrive at s slightly Jess than 50% sur-
vival rate for those men lost in North Viet-
pam before Quang’s report for whom the U.8.
had noconumpoms evidence of capture
or death.

tared and held in North Vietnam without the
knowledge of the U.8. Government or the
POWs who were eventually returned? Again,

the U.8. did not know for Jong periods of
time whether a particular MIA had, In fact,
been captured. B

If true, and allowing for a margin of error

tured in North Vietnam during the war.
When we consider some of the detalls of the
outstanding last known alive discrepancy
cases from the North used by General
Vessey, In addition to the large number of
post-war U.8. intelligence reports beginning
1n 1973 of pilots allegedly being beld after the

war, it becomes even more plausible that

such an act by Vietnam could bhave taken
place.
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On the day of the signing of the Paris ac-
cords (January 27, 1973), the U.8. listed over
1,950 personne]l as missing or captured in
Southeast Asia. North Vietnam returned 591
living U.S. POWs during Homecoming. This
left some 1,300 personnel as unacconnted for
POWs and MIAs. If General Quang’s Septem-
ber 15, 1972 “1,205" number of U.8. POWs is
correct, then North Vietnam knew on the
day of the signing of the Paris acoords that
nearly balf of all the unaccounted for POW/
MIAs not on their January 27, 1973 list of
those to be returned were being secretly kept
back by them for whatever reason.

In very simplistic terms, we can say that

General Quang is reported to have secretly
disclosed to his Politburo that a little over
1200 American POWs were held in Septem-
ber, 1972. About 600 POWs came home §
months later. That leaves over 600 POWs re-
maining (how much ‘‘over’* 600 depends on
who was actually captured between Septem-
ber and December, 1972 and pot returned). We
can then take this “over 800 or “‘at least™
000 figure and compare it with the 1,28 unac-
counted for American POWs and MIAs listed
as of May, 1973. In short, it’s about half,
meaning there existed a roughly 50% sur-
vival rate for those cases where the U.S. gov-
ernment had no idea if the man was alive or

didn’'t know {f any of these

alive or dead.) Again, I find this scenario to
bophnslblo
B. What were U.S. mumwm

on POW figures?

In evaluating the numbers in General
Quang's report, and the plausibility of a few
or several hundred POWs having been held
back, it is necessary to sxamine U.8. expec-
tations on the numbers of possible POWs !o
bencnmodntmmdotthem

On Decembey 22, 1970, Hanol’s mpmsanta-

.tives handed over an “official”™ st of the

names of 33 POWSs to representatives of Sen-
ators Kennedy and Fuldbright (including 9
previously released POWs and 20 who were
listed as baving died in captivity.) Quang's
report also accurately acknowledges that the
368 figure was the orly officially published

newsman Michael Maclear that the list was
s “complete and full account” of all the
Americans who were prisoners of the North
Vietnamess, adding “I swear to you that
these men are well-treated.”

~ However, as of December, 1970, the official
figures from the DoD's Comptrolier's Officer
showed 462 POWSs, 962 MIAs (hostile missing).
and 117 (non-hostile missing) for a total of
1,541 POW/MIASs.

Additionally, the U.8. had gathered Jnl‘ot-
mation both before and aftar 1970 indicating
that this was not true. Almost & year and &
balf earlier, on August 5§, 1968, USAF Captain
Wesley Rumble had been released from over
& Year in captivity in North Vietnam. On Au-
gast 7, 1960, during s debrieflng at Andrews
AFB, he provided a memorised list of 370
U.8. POWs supposedly held captive. When it
had become apparent he might be released,
fellow POWs had passed the names to him in
an effort to get word to the U.8. on which of
its missing personnel had been captured. -

One yoar after the Dec. 1970 list was pub-
lished by North Vietnam, Secretary of De-
fense Mel Laird held a press conference (in
Japuary, 1972) to show that North Vietnam
was lying on the total number of prisoners.
During his press conference, he used several
fllustrative cases of men known to have been
captured by North Vietnamese forces who
were not on the list.
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In testimony before the Semnate Select
Committse on POW/MIA Affairs on June M,
1992, Secretary Laird stated: '‘We weren't
being critical of the Kennedy lst ... we
were glad to get that information, but lt was
pot complete information and we knew of
the existence of other POWs when thoss lists
were delivered to us (through Senator Kem-
bedy).”

Additionally, in a statement mp.rod for
release on May, 1971, yet never published at
U.S. request, a recently-defected North Viet-
aamese Army doctor, Dan Tan, had provided
the following information in response to Ha-
Dot's “compiete’ list in Decamber, 1970 and
its policy toward POWs:

‘*Human beings—American POWs held in
North Vietnam are being treated as commod-
ities. According to the policies of the Central
Committee, the Lao Dong Party (NVN Com-
munist Party) intents to use theae American
POW’s hostages in bargaining to achieve its
political objectives. Illustrative of this is the
statement made by Hanoi's representatives
in Paris that North Vietnam now bolds only
367 American POWs in captivity. Ladies and
Gentleman, this is untrue. I know that al-

‘ready by mid-1967, when 1 departed North

Vietnam, over 00 American POWa were then
in captivity in North Vietnam . . . when will
these American POWs be released? It is pos-
sible that some will never be released as they
are too valusble to North Vietnam as
sources of information and for the technical
skills they possess ... I am deeply con-
cerned over the fate of all the American
POWSs in NVN, but most particularly over 500
or more who were not named by NVN in
Paris. These unnamed American POWs will
continue to be exploited by NVN and will
serve as the tool for NVN in blackmailing
the USA . . . My knowledge about American
POWs i3 derived not only from numerous of-
fictal triefings given by senior cadres of the
propaganda and training commission of the
Central Committee, but also from discus-
sions with wvarjous officials and individuals
who were directly and indirectly inyolved in
the exploitation of American POWs."

In & memorandum to Dr. Kissinger on May
10, 1971, the Central Intelligence Agency de-
scribed that Dr. Tan bad “demonstrated
himself knowledgeable of North Vietnamese
policies with respeot to the handling of US
prisoners of war,” and was reported to have
peraoml scquaintance with ‘‘many-ranking
NVN personalities, particularly Vioce Min-
ister of Public Security Pham Kiet and Vice
Minister of National Defense, Nguyen Don.”

The Defense Intelligence is re-
ported to have listed 1,516 POW/MIAS and an
additional 807 KIA/BNRs as of September 30,
1965 when Dr. Tan rallied to the South. Offi-
cial Defense Department statistics had also
shown 847 POW/MIAs at the end of 1967 when
Dr. Tan had obtained his 800 figure.

Finally, concerning Dr. Tan’s reporting, it
13 interesting to note his comments in his

first CIA debrieflng over one year before Ha<

pot’s “official” release of the 368 list. Ao-
cording to CIA, Dr. Tan had relayed the fol-
lowing tn November, 1968:

“Names of American’ POW: and the pum-
ber of captivity, are considered to be a state
secret and will not be released for political
reasons . . . the DRV is deliberately with-
holding the names of all POWs ... Any
names of POWs which may have been pub-
lcised have been made only because this
serves specific ulterior motives of the DRV.
Tan concludes in these cases that the DRV
has gained the cooperation of those individ-
uals whose names it has publicised or who
are permitted to write letters.”

Indeed, six months before Hanol's om«:ﬂu
368 list was published, the U.S. knew that
more than 368 POWs were held, and that Dr.
Tan’s statements had a ring of suthentieity.
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On July 10, 1870, Acting Secretary of the
Army Thaddens Beal wrote the Secretary of
Defense stating:

“In December, 1868, DRV officials began
stating that all American PW were per-
mitted to corvespond with) their families, and
the DRV post office referred to 320 such cor-
respondents. The flow of letters began to in-
crease. Using (U.8. anti-war activist) Cora
Weiss' Committee of Lialson as an
intermediary the enemy has allowed some

. 38-American PW to write six-line letters

home. Of thase, 202 were writing home for
the first time and some were men who had
been missing for nearly flve years. At
present, Cora Woiss maintains that about 34
Americans are detained by Hanol. But the
facts are that 780 Americans are listed as

Indochina. We expect that among thoss list-
od as missing, substantial numbers will even-
taally turn up as captives . . . ‘To accept Ha-
noi's indirect admisgion of responsibility for
less than 360 US PW as conduct constituting
reasonable, humane, or internationally re-

.sponsible conduct is to betray those other

-

orgotten Americans.” Five months later,
Hanol's “indirect admission'’ became a “‘di-
rect admission” when they officially pudb-
lished 368. names, the approximate Cora
Weiss namber, as a “fall and complete” ao-

coun 8

'l'ho following statement before an August
hearing of the Senate Sslect Commit-
POW/MIA Affairs demonstrates how
possibility
U.8. as MIAs bad actually been cap-

g‘i?izﬁ%
g ¢

t: *If when (news correspond-
Murphy Martin had brought Mrs. Sin-
(wife of an MIA) into my office (in
prove that your husband
Wu there ever a besper?
wou. I don’t know. I'd say
Afr Force or I won't talk to
came back in a few days
tbero no beeper. 1 said, well, he
killed ob impact, then. Forget it. In-
spen days—this was while the
We put the Vietnamese
in a brutal way about Jerry
Singleton. And finally they got so sick of us
had him. And they had
to aocount for him. And when I finally got to
visit with him after he came home (in 1973),
1 said Jerry, there wasn't a besper. And he
said Perot, the dumbest thing I ever did in
my life was not check the batteries before I
flew the misgion.”

Indeed, there are ssveral other examples
which oan be oited to illustrate the possibil-
ity that an additional 600-700 POW/MIAs
could have been held in North Vietnam with-
out the knowledge of the U.S. Government.
(Note: The possibility that they were held
without the knowledge of fellow prisoners is
addressed below under **C. Locations.”)
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The first letter Lt. Alvares (the first cap-
tured POW tn North Vietnam) eventually re- -

ceived was from his wife who told him that
no one knsw he was alive, and she was,
therefore, writing in the hopes he was alive.
‘The Navy had assumed him to be lost at sea.

POW Bill Franke was informed by a fellow
POW in North Vietnam that he bad been re-

Diego. His life insurance had been paid to his
wife, and she had bought a new house and set
about making a new life for herself. (Source:
“P.0.W."” by John Hubbell, 1976)

Marine PFC Ronald L. Ridgeway had been
reported killed in an ambush near Khesanh
in 1968, and a subsequent memorial service

was that persons listed
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bad been held for him at Jefferson Barracks,

MO. He showed up on the Communist POW

lists on January 27, 1973, the day the peace

accords were signed. Only then, filve years

};;:r was he known to be alive. (Source:
)

8gt. First Class 0mll Flora became miss-
ing in action on July 21, 1967 during an Army
Speolal Foroes night action. For six years,
until he was listed as a POW on the January
27, 1973 Commaunist 1ist, his wife didn't know
if he bad been killed or captured. (Source:
*“The Rald” by Benjamin Schemmer, 1976)

Numerous other examples can be found by
reviewing POW/MIA and KIA/BNR lists, and
recent information uncovered through archi-
val research and interviews in Vietnam and
Laoe. The point here is to simply point out
that there ocontinue to be several hundred
oases where the U.S. Government cannot
prove if currently unacoounted for MIAs
were captured or killed, and thus, we cannot
dismiss thess facts in analyzing General
Quang’s total 1,205 number.

‘Today, there are over 1,160 unaccounted for
U.8S. personnel who were listed as missing in
action during the war, including over 340 lost
in North Vietnam and 328 in Laos. For sev-
eral bundred of them, we still don’t know for
sure whether they were captured oy killed
during their incident, and in many cases, we
know Vietnam has knowledxe concerning
what happened.

“In looking at General Quang's total 1,205
figure of American POWs, we should bear in
mind. the reaction of some U.S. officials in
January, 1973 when only 561 came home. In
detatled testimony before the Senate Select
Committes on POW/MIA Affalrs on June 24,
1892, Lt. General Eugens F. Tighe, Jr.
(USAF-ret), former Director of Intelligence
for the U.8. Pacific Command in 1972/73, stat-
od the following: -

“As the Paris Peace negotiations neared
their conclusion, the Commander in Chief,
U.8. Pacific Command (CINCPAC) received
tasking relative to his responsibility as Mili-
tary Commander of Pacific Forces to forward
a8 aocurate a list as possible of the military
personnel CINCPAC and component com-
manders expectad to be returned by the en-

emiea on the anticipated successful conclu-

sion of the Paris Peaco negotiations.’

CINCPAQ directed that I assemble a group
of senior intslligence officers from my
CINCPAO intelligence staff- and from the
headquarters of the component commanders’
staffs to build a master CINCPAC list-in re-
sponse to the request (from the Secretary of
Defense and/or Chairman of the Joint Chiefs
of Staft.)

“Each of the eomponont commanders,
CINC Pacific Air Forces, U.S. Army, Paciflo,
CINC Pacific Fleet and Fleet Marine Forces,
Pacific, quickly named a senior intelligence
specialist to work under my direction and
sdditional analysts, personnel specialists
and clerical personnel as necessary to com-
plete the task. Their role was to assemble all

. of the records and intelligence available to

each of their headquarters, in the CINCPAC
intelligence conference room. and to complile
a list, by military service, of the names,
rank, and other relative data on each miss-
ing individual on which sufficient intel-
ligence and other data was available to rea-
sonably expect that he had survived and
would be returned on successful conclusion
of the Paris negotiations.”

“Toward that end, a complete evidentiary
dossier was to be compiled on each individ-
ual. Altogether, some thirty people were di-
rectly involved in the project. . .”

“For construction of the list, I instructed
the analysts to gather any and all pertinent
data which could support or deny the possi-
bility of survival of the missing in action. In-
formation and intelligence included oper-
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ational reports, human reports, eyewitness
reports of fellow combat personnel, *jolly
green' reports (of attempted rescues) from
helicopter crews, communications {inter-
cepts, photographs, and other data from the
print and other news media and any other
data from any other source, which might
shed light on the missing. Much of the data
had been collected by the individual military -
departments who were responsible for cas-
ualty reporting .

‘“They (the llsts) wers to be as accurately
anticipatory as humanly possible. Logistic
planning and a great deal of human endeavor
and emotion were tied in to the determina-

tion of naming an individual. . . The very

highly classified and sensitive lists were sest
to the Commander in Chief—Admiral
G:ylor—-to the Secretary of Defense and to
tbe Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Stafr.”
“I don't remember any feedback from the
lists or inquiry on 1t. . . I don't remember
any reaction prior to the release of names of
POWs by the Hanof Government. I certainly
remember the shock and sadness of the pau-
city of the lists of names we received versus
what we expected. I know my boss, Admiral
Gayler, oertainly reacted and there were lots
of discussion of what might be done,
eto. . . I do remember that we discussed all
klnds of possibilities inciuding the expecta-
tion of separate talks with the extraction of
POWSs from Laos and Cambodia, etc.”
Senator KERRY (Chairman). “What was
your oxpoctauon about how many should be
returing and what did you think when you
saw the lists pressented by the North Viet-

General TIGHE.- “My personal view was
shock because I had a great deal of faith in
the approximate numbers of those lists that
we had compiled and the dossiers and my re-
action was that there was something radi-
cally wrong with the (North Vistnamess)
lists versus our information. that they
should have contzined many more names.
‘That was my personal judgement and that
was & collective -judgement of all those that

.had worked complling the lists.”

Senator KERRY. “Did you communicate
that to anybody at the time?"

General TIGHR. ‘‘Only to my commander. 1
bad no reason to go beyond that. It had been
made very seasitive. . . we kept reassuring
ourselves that there was something yet to
come. The whole aura .-. . dealt with a feel-
ing we were only dealing with part of the
numbers. There was more to come that we
weren't aware of.”

(Note: In earlier Belect Committes inter-
views and a deposition with General Tighe.
he stated that the list he compiled was ent}-
tled “Anticipated PW Returness” and that it
contained names of 900-1,000 men.)

During the - same hearing, an exchange
took place with Admiral Tom Moore, former
Chatirman of the Joint Chiefs of Stalf {n 1973,
on the same issue: .

Senator REID. “Admiral Moorer, would you -
give me your reasons why you believed there
were POWSs still in Southeast Asia?”

Admiral MOORER. “Well, becanse the scope
of the operations and the number of persons
that were involved and the number of air-
craft that were shot down and so on. where
we didn’t find immediate information about
what happened to the pilot and so on. I
thought also, in view of the fact that the war
had been going on for $ years, you know, I
certainly would expect it to be more than 591

. Ididn’t think you could ciean it up that
tast."

In the same hearing. former Secretary of
Defense Mol Laird stated in response to the
final 1ists turned over by North Vietnam u:

- January, 1973:

Secretary LAIRD. *It was my gut feeling
that there wers moie. I think the last figures
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weo had (when he left office in 1972) were that
the lists of POWs probably would contain
quite a few more names than that. We were
disappointed.”

Finally, in examining the numbers and pol-
icy outlined by General Quang. we should re-
member the large-volume of post-war live-
sighting reports of American- POWs reported
left behind in captivity. Several hundred of
these reports had already surfaced by the
mid to late 1970's prior to the raising of this
issue as a highest national priority by Presi-
dent Reagan in 1962. During this period, U.S.
collection activities on possible POW/MIAs
in Southeast Asia were at an all time low, as
described in the Final Report of the Senate
Select Committee on POW/MIA Affairs (Jan-
nary, 1993). Taken in the aggregate, the re-
ports, the majority of which were
unconfirmed at the time, represented a com-
pelling reason to believe that large numbers
of American POWs could still have been alive
in Laos and Vietnam. It was not as if the
United States had no information to ques-
tion whether North Vietnam had returned
all POWSs following the war. We certainly did
have indications, despite the conclusions of
the House Select Committee on Missing Per-
sons in 1976 and the Presidential (Woodcock)
Commission in 1977.

Some of the information came from seem-
ingly credible sources whose stories cannot

be easily dismissed today. The discovery of .

the Quang document should cause the U.S.
Government to take a closer look at these
reports which corroborate General Quang’s
references to several hundred more POWs
held by Hanol.

For instance, in November, 1979, U.S. in-
vestigators interviewed former North Viet-
namese Lieutenant Le Dinb, who had served
as an intelligence analyst in 1971 in the Gen-
eral Headquarters of the North Vietnamese
Ministry of Defense. In 1972, he had become
a permanent member of the Lao Dong Party
(now the Communist Party of Vietbam.) Le
Dinh claimed that his pesition within the
North Vietnamese military intelligence hier-

- archy provided him access to intelligence on
many topics, including American prisoners
of war. U.S. Intelligence debriefers deter-
mined that “much of the information fur-
nished regarding the personalities in the
General Headquarters is confirmed as accu-
rate . . ." and that he ‘“‘demonstrated that he
had access to information about the North
Vietnamese military agency responsible for
American prisoners.”

Le Dinh stated that following the end of
the war, ‘“he heard at staf{f meetings that
about 700 Americans still remained in Viet-
nam. The information was attributed to re-
marks by senior officers to the effect that
the SRV had retained a ‘‘strategic asset’ of
over 700 American prisoners that could be
used to force the U.S. to pay reparations.”
The conclusion reached privately by the U.S.
in 1960 was that “Le Dinh’s story is intrigu-
ing and not yet fully known.”’ Indeed, there
are several hundred reports from refugees
which have outlined the same policy out-
lined by General Quang in 1972. We also know
that the North Vietnamese clearly linked
*‘the search for missing Americans’” with the
U.S. “obligation” to provide economic as-
sistance during the November, 1976 meetings
in Parls. and on numerous other occasions.

B. Descriptions

‘““The 624 American aviators (in North
Vietnam) include 3 astronauts, ie: three peo-
ple who have completed the necessary train-
ing for space flight, for instance, Jim Katlo,
who was captured in the vicinity of Hanol.
This figure also includes 15 US Air Force
aces having more than 4,000 flight hours
each: Norman Klarvisto, Karmet, Jim lntist
Shasht, and others.”
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The North Vietnamese were obviously very
proud that they had captured such prized
possessions of the United States.

**Jim Katlo’’ probably. refers to Jim Kasler,
an Air Force Major shot down and captured
on the western outskirts of Hano! on August
8. 1966. On the day of his capture, Time Mag-
azine had run an article featuring the career.
complete with a photo. of “U.S. Air Force
Major James Kasler, 40, of Indianapolis, who
is dubbed by his wingmates as ‘‘'one-man Afir
Force.”

The article, which Kasler had not yet seen
but the North Vietnamese had, continued,
**A World War II tail-gunner and six-kill ace
in Korea, Kasler in flve months had limped
home four times with his F-105 riddled by
flaks or Migs, bas seen 30 SAM missailes z00m
up in his vicinity, tangled in the longest dog-
fight with Migs thus far of the war. Six
weoks ago, Kasler flew as co-leader of the
rajd on Hanol’s oil installations . . . says a
fellow pilot, “he {s hawk.” The four-plane
flight that Kasler commands (has) destroyed
or damaged 219 buildings, 66 barges, 53 rail-
road cars, 44 trucks, 36 fuel tanks, 28 bridges,
and 16 flak sites—a record for any such air
unit . . . says he, “the best way to survive is
by being aggressive.’

It i1s certainly plausible that General
Quang would highlight this case if indeed

. Jim Katlo (GRU 1972 Russian language trans-

lation) was Jim Kasler.

In addition, General Quang’s reference to'3
persons who had completsd the necessary
training *for space flight’” {s not absurd
from the North Vietnamese point of view. On
February 11, 1965, Lt. Cmdr. Robert
Shumaker, USN, had been shot down and
captured over North Vietnam. A Vietnam
News Agency releases had stated that Com-
mander Shumaker *‘had been selected to be
an astronaut™ (Source: P.O.W. by John
Hubbel, 1976, Reader’s Digest Press.) There-
fore; even If Shumaker, in fact, had not been
selected to be an astronaut, the North Viet-
namess believed otherwise.

T have also learned that two other retarned
POWs, Navy Lts. Ned S8human and Bill Law-

rence, had indeed gone through astronaut
training in the United States prior to their
capture in North Vietnam. Thus, it {s cer-
tainly plausible for General Quang to state”
that three people who had completed *‘the
pecessary training for space flight” were
among those captured in North Vietnam.

Alr Force aces named by General Quang as
baving more than 4,000 flight hours each is
also plausible.. For instance, the Rassian
transiated name “Norman Klarvisto'” could
have been Norman Carl Gaddis, an Air Force
06, who could sasily have had more than 4,000
bhours flight time. “Jim Intist Shasht” ap-
pears to be heavily garbled and lends cre-
dence to the view that the Quang speech may
have been collected by the Soviet GRU via
recording devices. However, this name could
conceivably translate to Jim Hiteshew, an
Alr Foroe colone] shot down over North Viet-
nam in 1867 who returned alive in 1973. Other
POWs with famous histories also had 4.000
hours of flight time, such as USAF Colonel
Robinson Risner who had been an ace in
Korea and was considered obne of the Alr
Force's best. He had been on the cover of
Time Magazine prior to his capture, and
North Vietnam was already well-aware of his
background when be was captured.

3. A few words about the political views
and attitudes of American POWs . . . the fol-
lowing {s a summation: 368 POWs holding
progressive views (according to the North Vi-
etnamese) who can be released first . . . 372
POWs holding neutral positions and 465
POWs holding reactionary views.'

Vietnam's attempts to categorize the per-
ceived political views of their POWs into sep-
arate categories is well documented, and in
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this sense, General Quang’s remarks are gen-
erally accurate. It is conceivable that Gen-
eral Quang’s presentation to the Politburo
on this specific area was considered to be the
definitive report to date on the results of in-
terrogations of American prisoners of war
held in North Vietnam.

In John Hubbell’s book, P.O.W., published
in 1976, he recounts statements from North
Vietnamese interrogators relayed to him
through former POWs after the war. They
are amaiingly similar to General Quang’s
comments. For example, the following state-
ment was made by one interrogator:

“You must decide whether you are going
to take the good path, the path of Ho Cbi
Minh and the Vietnamess pecple, the path of
cooperation; or whether you are going to
take the bad path, the path of resistance and
death "

*“Those who take the good path will receive
good treatment. They will receive better
food and lots of exercise and sunshine. They
will have recreation. They will be allowed to
read and study. When the time comes, they
can expect to be released and go home to
thetr hmules. perhaps even before the war
ends.”

“But we know that the vast majority will
not be able to take the good path because
they have been spoiled by the American sys-
tem. They will understand the good path,
but will not be able to take it because they
are set in their ways. We understand that,
and they will be treated humanely, because
even though they do not take the good path,
they will not take the bad path, either. They
will receive enough food and medical care,
and when the time comes they will be re-
leased to go home.”

*“But also there will be a very small group
of diehards. These people will take the bad
path. They will refuse to admit their mis-

‘takes and will refuse to apologize and co-

operate with the Vietnamese people. They
will oppose us and resist us, and lead others
against us. That group will be severely pun-
ished. We are done with the diehard crimi-
pals. Theirs is the path of uncemlnty and
death.”

Captured Viet Cong documents from as
early as 1966 show that the approved Com-
munist policy toward U.8. POWs fit the pat-
tern described by General Quang. A January,
1966 directive from the Enemy Proselyting
Staff stated, in part:

*. . . In order not to disclose the identify
and number of prisoners and prevent their
contact with the efiemy, the malil of POWs
whose names have not been made public or
known by the enemy or who are stubborn.
will not be forwarded. Instead, their letters
will be kept and studied. Letters of progres-
sive and cooperative POWs will be forwarded
and received for them, but only on the occa-
sions of holidays. Stubborn POWs will not be
prevented from writing, but thelir letters will
not be forwarded and thelr incoming mall
will be detained and only delivered when we
deem appropriate.” )

Hubbell goes on in his book to dfscuss sev-
eral cases in detail where the POWs were
forced into '‘taking the good path.”” A few
had done it almost voluntarily to the disgust
of the majority of strong-willed POWs. It is,
therefore, conceivable by Vietnamese stand-
ards, that they believed they were succeed-
ing in ascribing attitudes to the POWs based
on the results of interrogations.

North Vietnamese defector Dr. Tan, whom
1 have earlier referenced, also confirmed to
the U.S. Government as early ss 1970, the
categorization of POWs as outlined by Gen-
eral Quang in 1972. Dr. Tan referred to the
following categories used by North Vietnam
‘‘to meet 1fs objectives’:

“A. Those who are considered special or
important POWs by virtue of the importance
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of the information which they have provided
or because of the potential which they offer
to NVN at some fature date.”

B, Hard-core POWs who, because or in
spite of their refusal to cooperate or provide
information, are oconsidered to have the same
potential as POWs in the paragraph A cat-
egory.”

“C. Non-important or “'progressive’” POWs
whose oontinued presence in NVN, after
thorough debriefing, will bring Iittle or bo
further advantages to NVN and who, there-
fore, can be nluud whenever it best serves
the DRV's purposes.”

“Only the progressive POWs can be ex-
ploited for purposes of collection intelligence

through their copntacts in the
U.8. or by pecrsmading these contacts to en-
gage in anti-war activities. Prisoners of the
other two oategories cannot be exploited for
this purpose because it could lead to the sur-
facing of their identities. The identities of
POWs in the - first category are carefully
guarded because identifying them as POWs
rather than as missing or killed in action
would permit the enemy to employ counter-
measures to negate the value of the informa-
tion which they are providing. Similarly, the
identities of hard-core POWs are kept secret
because they may not survive the applica-
tion of interrogation and other techniques to
make them ocooperate.”

Acooeding to a 1973 Defense Intelligence
Agency appraisal of the treatment of the re-
turned POWs based on their debriefs, the 43%
U.8. POWs released by the DRV during
Homecoming had experienced a ‘‘general ab-
sence of torture” and “gradually improved
living conditions™ from 1970 to 1973, whereas
torture bad been “‘prevalent” for the POWs
from this group who were held prior to 1960.
This group of POWs, therefore, could have
included the majority of the POWs whom
North Vietnam considered to be progressive
by September, 1972, regardless of whether or

ments oonoerning which U.8. POWs were

Iogical to as-
sume that 15, 1972 was one major
reporting session “in accordance with in-
structions from the Politburo.”

Huabbell also tells about statements by
North Vietnamese interrogators beginning in
1970 where the POWs began to be refarred to
as “prisoners” or “prisoners of war'’ as op-

i

instancss, beginning in 1969, there they were
told ‘‘you are po longer criminals but pris-
oners of war.” Thus, General Quang's ref-
erence to the men as prisoners of war in his
report to the politburo appears to have been
the correct term used by the North Vietnam-
ese between 1970 and the end of the war. Even
in the private Kissinger-Le Duc Tho talks,
these terms had been used by the North Viet-
namese (acoording to declassified tran-

Funny Qeneral Quang atates that
through their interrogations of POWs, they
had “oollected data about American weapons
and also valuable sclentific materials about
the U.8. Army, for instance, material on how
to use different types of weaponry, tactical/
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technical characteristics of alrcraft, Air
Force directives, as well as materials about
other types of armament of the US Army.”

No returned POW would dispute the fact that -

information on these matters was provided
by POWs on several occasions, although in
many instances. the information given was
purposely incorrect or a combination of haif-
truths.

In the book P.0O.W., anthor Hubbel reveals,
in some instances, how POWs were interro-
gated on such matters:

*‘Letters from your family in return for an-
swering these questions. The offer was made
to Bob Shumaker, and was real enough. The
letters, one from his wife, Lorraine, and the
other from his mother, were shown to him.
How badly be wanted them! It had been more
than a year since his shoot-down, and he had
received no word from home in a long time.
But the guestions were not the kind ome
oould play games with. There were thirty-
five of them, and they were highly technical,
dealing with antimissile warning systems in
alroraft, pulse repetition frequencies, band
widths, and 90 on. They implied a knowledge

" that Bob felt ocertain far excesded the tech-

nological expertise of the Vietnamese—even
he, with advanced degrees in two technical
fieids, would not have been able to answer
more than balf of them. Surely, the ques-
tionnaire had been prepared by others, who
were not likely to be fooled by any foolish
answers he might give. The price for the let-
ters being too high, he declined to pay it. He
was seated on a stool for twelve days, a.nd or-
dered to ‘‘think dee

ply.
Other U.8. intelligence indicates that tho»

Russians and Chiness were directly involved
(face to face) in interrogations of U.8. POWs,
ospecially in the mid to late 1960's. Yet none
of the POWs who returned in 1973 reported
direct contact with Russian or Chinese offi-

- cors (according to DIA). The issus of who

these reports, therefore, pertained to has not
been resclved, and should be more closely ad-
dressed in view of General Quang’s report in
Russian language in the GRU archives. . .
As former DIA Director General Bugene
Tighe stated before the Senate Belect Com-
mittee on POW/MIA Affairs on Jane M, 1902:
“Something that has bothered me down
through the years is if your records show
that none of our prisoners of war who re-
turned were ever interrogated by the Chinese
or Russians . . . those nations which had the
most reason to interrogate our prisoners .
and my suggestion is that until mcuau
cleared up and we find out, there may have

been apother track by which our prisoners

were routed . . . that introduces a whole new
aspect to the question.™
. C. Locations

“All of them (1,205 American POWSs) are
presently in prisons in North Vietnam. Cur-
rently, we have 11 prisons whers American
POWs are held. We used to have 4 large pris-
ons, however after the American attempt to
free their POWs from Son Tay. ‘we expanded
this number to 11. Each prison holds approxi-
mately 100 POWs."

This is perhape the moet difficult part of
the presentation to accept at face value
without additional information from the
Ministries of Defense and Interior in Viet-
nam, and the former Soviet GRU {n Moscow.
This does not mean. however, that this por-
tion of the presentation should be rejected
based solely on what the U.S. Government
believes it knew about the wartime prison
system from returnee debriefs and other in-
formation. .

We now know that as of September 15, 1972,
there were six U.S. POW detention facilities
holding the POWs who eventually returned
at Homeooming (their ‘nicknames’ were
Dogpatch, Hanoi Hilton, Mountain Camp,
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Plantation, Rockpile, and the Zoo.) If Gen-
eral Quang's report is accurate, then there
were an additional five camps holding U.S.
POWs3s in September, 1972.

We know from the debriefs of the returnees
at Homecoming, that they had been held in
13 different camps in North Vietnam since
the war began, yet during this period, the
Defense Intelligence Agency only knew of 8
“confirmed” U.8. POW camps “in which
there is conclusive evidence that American
prisoners are, or were, detained on a perma-
Dent basis.” During this period, the Defense
Intell Agoncy was also closely watch-
ing 18 “possible” U.S5. POW camps in North
Vietnam. In some of these camps, there was
compelling information to cause DIA to list
them as suspected U.S. POW camps. Yet, no
one sver returned from any of -these camps,
and to date, the U.8. Government has not
confirmed that no one was ever held in the
camps. Indeed, the record cleariy shows we
have not even requested to visit many of the
suspect camps where the information about
possible U.8. POWs was the most compeiling.

In my judgment, the poesibility clearly ex-
ists that some U.8. POWs could have been
held in separate camps which were not
brought into the consolidation process when
it first began and subsequently aftef the Son
Tay Raid tn November, 1970. If, in the early

" stages of the war, the inner and outer Hanol

U.8. POW camp system had been consist-
ently separated from other holding systems,
including some well cutside the outekirts of
Hanoi, then a separats system could have ex-
isted. Indeed, 1t is intaresting to note the as-
sesmment of some DIA analysts that the POW
registry (of 354 visible mames of persons lost
between 1964 and February, 1972) recently
provided to General Vessey in Hanol in
April, 1993 appears to list the individuals in
the. order they were registered into the
Hanoi prison system, not in chronological
order according to shootdown.

Finally, according to DIA records, Hanol
did take steps to prevent communications
between different groups of prisoners by
holding them separately, such as the five
U.S. POWs from Laos bheld separately at
Briarpatch in the spring of 1971, and the sep-
aration of the 36 POWs captured in North
Vietnam who wers moved from Hoa Lo to
Skidrow in March, 1971 and separated from
the POWs already there who had been cap-
tured outside of North Vietnam.

Moreover, a study of the confinement chro-
nology of the. returned POWs suggests it is
plausible that either the Mountain Camp (¥
miles NW of Hanol) or the Rockplle Camp (32
miles South of Hanol) could have been the
location of the 16 officers or colonels which
were being held separately in September.
1972 according to General Quang (“Seven
USAF colobels captured in North Vietnam
and nine colonels of various branches cap-
tured in South Vietnam, Laocs, and Cam-
bodta”). The Mountain Camp had besn acti-
vated only eight months earlier when 8 U.S.
POWs from Skidrow and 1 U.8. POW from
Hoa Lo had been moved thers. Rockpile had
been activated over a year earlier when 14
U.8. POWs had been mioved there who had
been captured outside of North Vietnam. At
Homecoming, 3 USAF coloaeis from the
North returned while 4 continued to be listed
a8 missing (le: it is therefore conceivable, al-
though not definitive, that 7 (4+3) USAF
“oolonels’” captured in North Vietnam and 9
(8+1) colonels from outside North Vietnam
could have been hald separately. I only point
this out in an effort to stimulate serious and
thorough analysis of these possibilities.)

Could Hanol have pualled off keeping other
POWs back at Homecoming without U.S.
knowledge? According to Dr. Kissinger's Sep-
tember 22, 1992 testimony before the Select

-Committee on POW/MIA Affairs, “the Viet-
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namese are certainly capable of such a cyni-
cal act, and of lying about it.”
These possibilities were clearly expressed

in other hearings of the Senate Select Com--

mittee on POW/MIA Affairs long before the

discovery of the Quang report in Russian ar-

chives. .

It 1s fitting to close this section for now
with the following exchange that took place
in one such hearing on August 4, 1992 be-
tween the Defense Intelligence Agency POW/
MIA chief, Robert Sheetz, and the Chairman
of the Select Committee, SBenator Kerry:

Senator KERRY. ‘‘There were groupe of
prisoners brought together for the release
who only learned of each other being alive by
virtue of the process of being brought to-
gother, correct?”

Mr. SHEETZ. *“‘There were prisoners that
were consolidated toward the end.”

Senator KERRY. “And some were held in
different locations, perhape 10 people in one
location. Is that not accurate?”

Mr. SHEETZ. ““That's accurate.”

Senator KERRY. *.
however that a whole group of 10 held some-
where were never brought back to the main
group and therefore held back in some other
circamstances?”’

Mr. SHEETZ. ‘““That is possible.”

Senator KERRY. “So, the mere fact of
debriefings not showing that somebody was
not accounted for does not in and of itself
dispose at all of the notion that somebody
else could have been elsowhero""

Mr. SHEETZ. *“That’s true .

vill. BIOGRAPHICAL nmomumou ON oxnnuu.
TRAN VAN QUANG (AKA—BAY TIEN, TU BAY,
TRAN CONG, TRAN NAM TRUNG)"
1917—Date of Birth (8S8ource: Nhan Dan

Communist newspeper 11/21/92).

He was born in Nghe An Province in the
panhandle of Vietnam, a province which was
the birthplace of Ho Chl Minh and the home
of the 1930 Nghe An Soviet uprising.

1936—Quang joined Ho Chi Minh's Com-
munist Party of Indochina. (Source: Ibid.)

His brother, Tran Van Cung, was an 2ssoci-

ate of Ho Chi Minh snd an early party orga-
nizer. His wife, Tran Thi Tu, 18 also reported
to have been a close eonndant of General
Glap.

1836 to 1945—Quan is believed t.o have been
jatled by French authorities and held in var-
jous facilities for his political activities.

1945—Quang was freed from prison by Com-
munist forces during the August 1846 Revolu-
tion and joined the People's Army of Viet-
nam, PAVN—(Source: Ibid).

1946—-Quang is belleved to have been ap-
pointed concurrently to & staff position, Di-
rector of Staff for National Defense, and a
political position, Political Officer. Viet-
pam's Relief Forces.

1947-1950—According to French records, he
was the Political Officer for Inter-Region IV,
the area comprising the lower pan-handle of
Vietnam down to the 16th parallel where he
engaged in guerrilla activities.

1950-51—-Quang was transferred to the posi-
tion of Deputy Commander and Political Of-
ficer of the 304th Main Force Division, an im-
portant Communist dnit in the Viet Bac Spe-
clal Region, the area surrounding Dien Bien
Phu in the northwest of Hanol. g

M1d-1950's—Chief of the Enemy. Proselyting

- Department, General Political Depertment,
People’s Army of Vietnam.

(Note: the Enemy Proselyting Department
under PAVN is responsible for the utiliza-
tion, security, documentation, and exploi-
tation of enemy prisoners and its functions
continue to the present day.)

During this period. Quang {8 reported to
have supervised efforts to integrate stay-
behinds of the French Foreign Legion into
the “Viet Dung’’ assassination teams during

. . Is it Dot possible, -
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special training sessions of the Enemy Pros-
elyting/Resesarch Department conducted at
*Ba Be” lake in Bac Thai (formerly Bac Kan)
Province, North Vietnam.

(Note: see reference to “Ba Be Plan” in
Russian document on 15 Sept. 73 report by
Quang)

A former French POW pnamed *“Cuc”
worked for General Quang at the Enemy
Proselying Department during this perlod
(Source: Ibid)

Pre-1958—Deputy Commander, mm Divi-
sion, PAVN

(Source: U.8. Embassy Saigon Blographical
File, dated July, 1972)

1958—Deputy Chief, General Staff, PAVN
(Sources: Ibld and Reuters 41953)

Starting during this period, Quang moved
up to the position of Deputy Chief of Staff,
PAVN, (the position reported by the GRU in
their 1972 translation of Quang's September,
1972 report)

1856—Deputy Chief, General Staff, PAVN

(Source: Ibid and Nhan Dan 11/21/82)

1960—Deputy Chief, General Staff, PAVN
(Source: Ibid) .

**+_In this year, Quang was appointed as a
concurrent member of the Communist Party
Central Committee and the Ministry of Na-
tional Defense Central Military Affairs
Party Committee.

1961--Deputy Chlef of Staff, General Staff,
PAVN

(Source: Reuters quotse from Quang 419/93)

Major General, PAVN

Member, Central Mulury Affairs Party
Committee

(Source: U.8. Embassy Saigon Bio. File,
July, 1872)

1961-1964—Military Member of the Com-
munist Party's Central Committee Bureau
for South Vietnam (Source: Reuters 41993)

Military Commiasioper of the National
Liberation Front's Central Committee
(Source: Nhan Dan 11/21/92) - .

1963—General Tran Van Quang headed an
Enemy Proselyting Department, General Po-
1itical Directorate, PAVN, conference In Bac
Thai province in his capacity as Chief of the
EPD (Source: 20 Jan. §3 JTF/FA message)

1965-1974—He became Army Commander of
Military Region 4, or Inter-Region 4, and in
1967, when the B4 Front Regional Head-

- quarters opened to coordinate tactical oper-

ations throughout the Tri-Thien—Hue area,
Quang concurrently became its political offl-
cer. (Sources: Nhan Dan Comununist publica-
tion 11721832 and JTFIPA Jan. §3 message, And
other sources.)

He is believed to have passed orders to the
fleld by radjo during most of this entire pe-
riod.
1966—In January, General Quang wrote a
maljor publication in the communist publica-

tion “Hoc Tap'' #1 entitled ‘‘Develop the

Role of Militia and Self-Defense Forces.”
(Sources: CIA and U.S. Embassy Saigon Bio-
graphical File, July 1972, transiated copy
available, 13 pages)

1966—In July, General Quang wrote a
major publication in the comumunist publica-
tion *Qhan Doi Nhan Dan’’ (Source: Ibid)

1973—Deputy Chief of Staff, VPA (Source:
Retired North Vietnamese Colonel and
former 197273 Communist spokesman Bui
Tin—comments made in April, 1993 prior to
public disclosure of Russian document.)

General Quang is also believed to have
been the operational commander and prin-
cipal political officer for the April, 1972
‘Easter Offensive’.

1973—July—Listed as Member of the
Central Military Party Committee and a
Deputy Chief of Staff from 1958 onward.
(Source: U.8. Embassy Saigon Bio. File,
July, 1972)

1972—Listed as Deputy Chief of 8taff, VPA

. and one of 14 members of the Central Milj-
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tary Affairs Party Committee and one of 5
Deputy Chiefs of Btaff, VPA.

(Source: U.S. Joint Public Affairs Office
(JUSPAO), U.8. Embassy, 1972)

1973—Reported as Deputy Chief of Staff on
September 15, 1972 {n recently released Rus-
sian POW document.

1973—'‘Quang told him (Gen. Vessey) he did
pot visit Hanoi in 1972 until months after the
date of the report.”

(Source: Reuters, 41953, Note: Report date
Sept., 1972)

197T3—Deputy Chief of Staff, VPA, Member
of Central Military Affairs Party Commit-
I-;,es(Sonrca JUSPAO, U.8. Embassy Salgen,

)

1973—""He said he did serve twice as Deputy
Chief of Staff, in 1958-1961 and again in 1973
or 1974. He said he received medical treat-
ment in 1973, and he didn’t specify whether
he took the staff job that year or the next.”
(Source: Reuters, 41943)

1973—*"He said he went to East Gormmy
for medical treatment in 1973, bat gave no
details.” (Source: Ibid.)

19731t is reported im U.S. records that
Quang secretly became a full member of the
Central Commnittee of the Communist Party
in 1973 and was promoted to Lieutenant Gen-
eral. .

1974—On January 26th. the Hanof Mol Com-
munlst. publication is listing General Quang

Doputy Chief of Staff of the Amod Forces

Vice Minister of National Defense

Member of the Central Military Party
Committee

Member of the Vietnam Lao Dong Party
(Communist Party) Central Committee

1974-1978—Deputy Chief of Staff of VPA
Member of Central Party Committee Vice
Minister of National Defense :

(Sources: NhanD-numm.QmDole
Dan 373176, Quan Doi. Nhan Dan 6M4/76, Nhan -
Dan 124/T7, Nhan Dan 32/78)

1979—Vice Minister of Nadona.l Defense

of . V,lotnuneso
troops {n Laos (Source: Nhan Dan 11/21/92)
1880—Deputy Defense Minister, SRV
(Source: Indochina Archive, University of
California, Professor Douglas Pike) -
1981—Vice Minister of National Defense
(Source: Nhan Dan %30481)

1983—Vice Minister of National Defense
(Source: Quan Doi Nhan Dan 12/24482)

1983—Vice Minister of National Defense
(Source Nhan Dan 113083 .

1964—*'Colonel general Tran Van Quang at-
tended the departure of a Cubin military dei-
egation.” (Source: Nhan Dan 1272684)

1985—Vice Minister of National Defense—
Reported as attending a meeting to com-
memorate the 68th anniversary of the Octo-
ber Revolution (7 Nov. 1917-7 Nov. 1985) at
the Vietnam-Soviet Culture Friendship
Houss (Source: Qhan Doi Nhan Dan 7 Nov. 85) .

December, 1989—General Quang is reported
to have presided over an Awards Ceremony
of the Enemy Proselyting Department.

1991—-Deputy Minister of Defense for Exter-
nal Affairs (Source: Joint Task Force memo
to Select Committee December, 1991)

In response to a question posed by Senator
McCain to JTF/FA senjor analyst Garnett
Bell at the Select Committee’s November,
1991 hearings, General Tran Van Quang's
name was provided to Bell’s conmand and to
the Select Committee with other names
under the following notation:

‘“The SRV should make avallable for inter-
view current and former cadre who were in-
volved in the detention. evacuation, and

-medical treatment of US POWs. Although

the Vietnamiese have indicated that senior
cadre were only peripherally involved, they
should nevertheless be considered as poten-

" tial witnesses due to their knowledge of pol-




September 8, 1993

icy matters, as well as the identities and
current whereabouts of their former subordi-
nates who were directly involved with US
POWSs. Some of theése cadres are. . .’
1903—Deputy Minister of Dotense as of Fedb-
ruary 1ist during meetings with General
Vessey. (Source: Vessey/Cam Joint State-
ment following meetings with Ministry offi-
clals on January 30/Feb. 1, 1962)

Deputy Minister of Defenss during March,
1992 meetings Hano! with U.8. Assistant Sec-
retary of Btate for East Asian and Pacific
Affatrs Richard Solomon.

May 30th, 19823 JTF/FA research proposal—
General Quang is 1isted as one of three per-
sons with approval anthority for access to
witbesses and records.

In November, Oeperal Quang. presumably
retired, was appointed head of the Vietnam
Veterans Association (Source: Qhan Dan 1V

21%93)
Note: It is my understanding that the U.8.
intaliigence oomnnnuy believes that based

as outlined in this bLrief biography,
completely plansible’” that he could be the
person who oould offer a political thesis to
the politbaro which involved further future
aggressive moves for takeover of the South
and political arguments advocated for the
toughest deal to be made with American ne-
gotiators. .

IX. AMALYAIS OF THE VIETNAMESE REACTION TO

THE DISCLOSURE OF THE 172 REPORT BY GEN-
- ERAL QUANO CONCERNING U.S. POWS (IN RUB-

SIAN LANGUAGE PORMYAPRIL-JUNE, 1963)

A. Statements by Vietnamese Officials -

The following statements, listed in chrono-
logical order by date, have been made by Vi-
etnamese officials since deiivery of the re-
port to the Vietnamess Mission at the Unit-
od Nations in New York by the Department
of Stats and Department of Defense on April
12, 1903 (the same date the New York Times
and Washington Times broke the stories).
(Note: Russian General Volkognov had hand-
od the POW portion of the report to the U.8.
side in Moscow on-April 8th)

In my opinion, and in views of the informa-
tion in this Intertm Analysis, each of the
statements i deeply troubling and vastly in-
adequate in responding to serious questions
ratsed by the 1973 Geperal Quang Report to
the North Vietnamese Politburo, and its sub-
sequent disclosure in former Soviet Union
archives 20 years later in Russian language
form. lomnt .in view of the fact that an-
other report to the Politburo by General
Quang dated June 26, 1972 has been discov-
ered in the Russian archives and aanthenti-
cated by the Russian Government, we are
compelled to continue to pursue this matter,
notwithstanding Vietnam's total denials to
date.

Thomuments are as follows:

=1 think it is another fabrication of hostile
circles in the U.8. who don’t want normal re-
lations with Vietnam. This fabrication
comes out in order to obstruct the process of
normalizsation of relations between the two
countries.” (Bource: Reuters. Wire Service,
Hanol, #1248 quoting an unidentified Viet-
namese souro® who is reported to be an offt-
cial of the Vietnam Veterans' Association
which General Quang heads.)

“I think it's a false document. We did not
share our secrets with the Soviets. We never
held that many prisoners. In 1973, we re-
leased all the prisoners who were alive. You
ocould ses It (the disclosure of the Russian
document) as a plot to throw a spoke in the
wheels of tion. The situation is
quite complicated in Russia now. Such a doc-
ument could have been deliberatsly planted.
The KGB may have been formidable else-
where, but they were not formidable on in-

‘national financial fnstitutions. . .
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ternal Vietnamese matters.” According to
the AFP reporter who did the interview,
“the official acknowledged that such a re-
port could have been sent from the military
commnnm d (in North Vietnam) to the Polit-

(Source: Agency French Press, Hanol, 41%¥
“fn“m an unidentified Vietnamese offl-
cial.)

“Hostile ctrcles in the U.S. want to raise
issues to obstruct the administration easing
U.8. sanctions against Vietnam tn inter-
. As far as
I know, it (the Russian document) is not
true, After 1973, we released 591 POWs, that’s
all there were.”” According to the Reuters re-
porter, the unidentified ‘‘senior’’ Vietnamese
official had stated that General Quang was a
“fixed commander” in the central province
of Binh Tri Thien in Septamber, 1972, when
the sscret report was purported to have been
written. (S8ource: Reuters, Hanof 41393)

*“Vietnam totally deniss that ill-inten-
tioned fabrication. The truth is thsat in 1973,
after the Paris agreements were signed, Viet-
nam returned all American prisoners cap-
tured in Vietnam. According to documents
published by the US Departinent of Defense
and the US Department of State and authen-
ticated by the US Senats Select Committee
on POW/MIA issue in its latest report dated
January 13, 1993, at the end of the war 1,172
Americah servicemen were reported missing
and their fate was unaccountad for in Indo-
china, 798 of which In Yietoam. Through its
efforts to cooperate with the US side in the

- humanitarian spirit, Vietnam bas so far re-

tarned to the US side more than 500 remains

- and cooperated with the US. Government in

tnvestigzting 70 live-sighting reports and 135
other cases involving unclear dossiers. The
results show no evidence of any American
being kept living in freedom In Vietnam. Re-
alities prove that the report carried by the
New York Times is completely groundless.”
(Source: Foreign Ministry Statement, Hanof,
Vietnam, as reported by Reuters and Viet-

nam News Agency, /1383.) AP's version of

the statement stated Vietnam had *“‘categori-
cally rejectsd this m-munuonod fabrica-
tion™

“Gen. Tran Van Quang had nothing to do

with the geperal staff of the Vietnamese

People’s Army. There wonld bé no reason for
Gen. Tran Van Quang to have prepared this
sort of report.” (Source: Nguyen Xuan
Phong, Acting Director of the Americans De-
partment at the Foreign Ministry in Hanol,
quoted in the New York Times, 41393)

According to NYT reporter Philip Shenon,
*Mr. Nguyen Bs Hung, a member of Mr.
Phong’s staff said General Quang bad never
been deputy chief of staff of the Army.’”* Mr.
Hung stated: “That's why it sounded very
funny when we heard his report. Those who
bhave knowledge about the war and about the
Army would have a better understanding.™

(Source: NYT 41393)

*“This i1s a pure fabrication and ws com-
pletely. reject it.” (Source: Tran Van Tu,
Deputy Director of Vietnam's officisl agency
in charge of seoking persons missing- from
the war (VNOSMP as ropomd to Assoclated
Press, 41383).

“Vietnam rejects it firmly. I'm- worried
that one result of this type of information ts
the criminal creation of unnecessary suffer-
ing of the families of Americans missing in
action.” Mr. Phong stated it was “merely a
fabrication.’”” (Source: Nguyen Xuan Phong,
Acting Director of Amerieas Department,
Foreign Ministry, Hanof as quoted by the As-
soctated Press, 413/93.)

“We think that it is a forgery document.
1t's totally false.” (Source: Vietnam’s Am-
bassador--to the United Nations, Le Van

" Bang, as guoted from CNN 4/13/83) During the

same interview, Amnbassador Le Bang stat-
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od that General Quang was a regional army
commander and was not in a position to
know the status of US POWs.

*“In 1972, General Quang was political
commissar of the fourth military region. In
that capacity. he was in no position to make
such a report.”

(Source: Colonel Pbhan Khac Hal, editor in
chief of the Army newspaper, Quan Dol Nhan
Dan. quoted by AFP, 41483)

““Whenever we seo expectations rise that
the United States might take some appro-
priate action, there are always rumors and
fabrications that come up . . . If they don't
bave any Vietnamese text. I can tell you for
sure this is a fabrication . . . Idon’t want to
speculate about who might be responsible,
but the press in the United States itself
talks about the ‘MIA industry.’''” -

(8ource: Ha Huy Thong, Deputy Dlmtor of
the Foreign Ministry’'s Ameérica’s Depart-
ment as quoted by AFP 41493)

*“Ms. Ho The Lan, bhead of the press and in-
formation department said the news carried
in the The New York Times is a sheer fab-
rication, the same as the three pictures pro-
duced earlier of alleged American prisoners
of war or the so-called transfer of American
POWs by Vietnam to the Soviet Union,
which once caused such a fuss in the United
States. An American paper on April 13 even
suggested that Vietnam might bave kilied
600 American POWS. This is a shameless fab-
rication which s an affront to the Vietnam-
o560 people who have made and are making
great efforts to solve the MIA question in
the humanitartan spirit. Any sober minded
person can see that all these fabrications are
intended to block the progress of Vietnam-
U.S. relations.”

(Source: Official Vlemam News Agency.
Hanof, ¥1593)

B. Erplanations and Information Offeved by
Leadership of Vietnam and General Quang to

U.8. Officials (Genevral Vessey's Aprit, 1993.

trip and May, 1993 CODEL trips)

Background: On Thursday, Apeil 15, 1983,
General Vessey, former Presidentisl Emis-

" sary to former President Bush, left for Viet-

nam at the request of the Clinton Adminis-
tration on a previously-scheduled trip to.as-
soss Vietnamese cooperation on the POW/

MIA tssue. Because the existence of the
Quang Report was only discloeed .following -

announcement of his trip, his mission quick-
ly turned to obtaining an ‘explanation from
the Vietnamese.

During General Vessey's meetings tn Hanol
on April 18th and 19th, the following com-
ments were made by Vietnamese officials:

At a photo opportunity before General
Vessey's first meeting with SRV Deputy For-
elgn Minister Le Mal: )

*I think during your stay hers we will try
to make some arrangements for you and
other American delegates to got information
about thig issue .
where—in the Russhn text or in American

text—but not in Vietnamese . . . Past expe-

rience testifies that it is a concocﬂon and a
fabrication. Not only against Vietnam, but
against normalization between Vietnam and
the United States.”

(Source: SRV Deputy Forelzn Minister Le
Mal, as reported by AFP, Hanol, 41893)

Following this first meeting, Minister Le
Mai stated:

“It's a sheer fabrication. It's non-exist-
ent.”

Asked who faked the report, Mal sald: R

It depends on your undars:an(une—qm:er

~ Americans or Russians _ ... ] think it existed

somewhere in Russian and American texts,
but 1t does not exist in Vietnam. So it is fab-
ricated completely. It is based on nothing

. I think 1t existed some-

-
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Following General Vessey's flrst meeting
with Foreign Minister Nguyen Manh Cam,
Le Maf again stated:

‘‘There's no Vietnamese text of the Rus-
sian document.”

Now York Times reporter Philip Shenon
filed the following story after the Vessey
meeting with Minister Cam:

{Vietnamese officials said today that after
news reports last week revealed the exist-
ence of the document in the Russian ar-
chives, the Vietnamese Defense Ministry
searched its archives for evidence to refute

. Hanol said the documents presented to
General Vessey today included a Defense
Ministry census prepared in the early 1970's
that showed 386 Americans had beén cap-
mwndl by North Vietnam (as of February,

)

“We wanted to find evidence to prove it
was [abricated,” said Ho Xuan Dich, Director
of Vietnam's Office for Seoking Missing Per-
sonnel (VNOSMP

). .
{Asked during a meeting with reporters
why the census was being turned over only
now, Mr. Dich gave to answers. First, be said
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On the morning after General Vessey's
:\;st day of meetings, Voice of Vietnam stat-

‘‘General Vessey said he has obtained im-
portant information which clearly proves the
inaccuracy of the report last week from Rus-
8ia that Vietnam was still retaining pris-
oners. His assessment was in conformity
with mass media opinion {n the U.S.A. In its
1ssue 15 April, the New York Times remarks:

It was common knowledge that the docu-.

ment on the MIA isgue provided by Russia
was fake."

‘. . . 1t 18 believed, during this visit Gen-
eral Vessey will collect good information to
clarify the fabrication in the Russian docu-

t!'
mg&nrca Hanol Voice of Vietnam, 19 Aprﬂ

On April 19th, General Vessey met wlt.h the
reported author of the 1972 North Vietnam-
@30 report to the politburo concerning POWs,
Following the meeting, General Tran Van
Quang is reported to have ‘‘reiterated Ha-
nol’s stand that it was a fake and no Viet-
namess original existed.” (AFP Story, 19

that tarning over the census had been unnec- 93)

essary because all American prisoners had
been released to the United States in 1973
and their names had been known to Washing-
ton for years. But he corrected himself a fow
minutes later, saying that the census had
not been turned over esrlier because “‘we
Just found it this week.™)

On April 18th, following General Vessey's
meetings, the official Hanol Voice of Viet-
nam bhad broadcast the following com-
mentary written by Noi Dan, the.official
Army paper:

“This sensational report has prompted a
number of right-wingers, newspapers, and
television corporations in the United States
to extensively fan up and embellizh the
issue. . . Apparently, they hoped that this
report- would receive strong support from
U.8. political ciroles and -that those who
spread the news would be awarded big prises.
Unfortunately, the result was to the con-
trary. U.8. Senator John Kerry, chnmmof
the Senate Select Committee on the POW/
MIA issue, after learning of the report made
a statement that this document must be
carefully analysed, that the. translation of
the document from Vietnamese to Russian
might show there was a mistake on the pa-
tionality of the prisoners detained.”

**A’ number of U.S. néwspapers also carried
reports oo a news conference held by Le
Bang, Vietnamese Ambassador to the United
Nations, on the issue. Thess newspapers to-
tally refected the ill-intentioned report car-
ried by the New York Times and asserted
that Vietnam had returned all U.8. POWs
right after the signing of the Paris agree-
ment in 1973, and that during the past 20
years, Vietnam has shown its good will and
has clossly codperated with the United
States in searching for remains of U.S. sol-
diers who died during the war ... Mr.
(Bruce) Franklin (suthor of POW/MIA
Mythmaking in America), a specialist In
U.8.-UK. affairs and the Vietnam war said
that the document was an awkward fabrica-
tion and the facts presented by the document
did not confirm with historical reality.”

*U.S. newspapers and publio opinion have
begun to criticise Stephen J. Morris, anthor
of this farce, dencuncing him as a partisan
who fanatically opposes the normaltzation of
relations between the United States and
Vietnam . . . Again, this fake document car-
ries groundless contents as in fake docu-
ments revealed in the past. It {s possible that
the document was produced and spread by
the some hostile forces who oppose fine, nor-
mal relations - between Vietnam and the
United States.”’

(Bonrco Hanof Voice of Vlotnun 018/93)

According to Quang:

‘“The intelligence service that munc-
tared this report was a very bad intelligence
service. It was absolutely wrobg,”” be sald,
without specifying which one. Asked who
was responsible, Quang stated, ‘“You can ask
the Russian intelligence service or ask Gen-
eral Vessey." )

*T understand that there are a lot of people

who are trying to undermine the process of

nomallntlon"Qunclddodmttbodocn
ment had caused “‘suspicion between the two
peoples who desire normalization, not to
mention the suffering to the families of the
MIAs ... 1 think it's a way to hinder ad-
vances in relations between Vietnam and the

"United States and cooperation in solving the
rstanding

MIA tssue and that causes misunde
between two paovles who wish nomul rela-
tions soon.” -

(Source: AFP, AP, Waahlnxﬁon Post. April
19, 1993, Hanol)

“As 1 told John Vessey, never in my life
did 1 make such a report because it was not
my respousibility. It was not my job. I had
nothing to do with American prisoners. Dar-
ing the war, I never met any American pris-
oners . .. it's very simple. I was.pot in
mnolatuntumo lmnottnchmoo!
American prisoners.” ’

*““The guy writing that report was not Vlob-
namess at all,* said General Quang.

Source: AP, Hanol, 41943) - :

**The style of the report is not Vlot.mmeso

The names and ranks of officials are inac--

curate. The number of the prisoners is much
hlg:er than that given to us by the U.S..” he
sal

(Source: Bangkok Post, 420/83)

“1 did not write it, 1 tell you, never in my
life have I made such a report, bécause it was
not my area of responsibility.*

(Source: New York Times, April 19, 1893,
Hanol)

[He said he went to East Germany for med-
ical treatment in 1978, but gave no details
and didn’t specify whether he took the staff
job that year or the next. Quang told him
(Vessey) that he did not visit Hanot tn 1972
until months after the date of the document}
(As reported by Reuters, Hanol, 41/83)

[He said he had “‘nothing to do with the
Russian intelligence service, and the Rus-
sians had no right to ask me about that.”)

{(Bource: AP, Hanol, 41993)

{Quang said he dealt with French POWSs in
the early 1850s as head of a unit of the
army’s General Political Directoraté. But he
sald he had nothing to do with American
prisoners and never reported on them to the
Politburo.]
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After the meeting with (General Quang,
General Vassey's delegation went back to
Foreign Minister Cam- where they held a
joint news conference. During the news con-
ference, Foreign Minister Cam made the fol-
lowing comments (not necessarily in the
order they were made):

“During the fierce fighting, we did not
have the conditions and enough time ‘o cap-
ture s0 many American prisoners.”

*'1 would like to say something about 5te-
phen Morris, the person who publicised this.
He has a long history of opposing Vietnam,
since the time he was an Australian stu-
dent.”

Foreign Minister Cam said Morris “had
certain intentions when be chose the tim-
tng"” of releasing the Russian document.”
(Source: New York Times., April 19, 1993,
Hanol)

[Foreign Minister Cam cited what he said
were eight major inaccuracies in the Russian
document. He said that records of North
Vietnam's policy-making Central Committee
show no Politburo meeting on the date on
question, that prisoners were not classified
for releass according to their attitudes on
the war, and that the total number of Amer-
ican POWs was “much higher than in re-
ality.”] (Source: Wash. Post. 4/1%/93)

Following General Vessey's departure from
Vietnam, the official Hanol Voice of Viet-
nam broadcast the following commentary
(pertinent excerpts) characterizing a New
York Times article in the following mnner:

‘“(During General Vessey's visit),
American newspaper, the New York' 'l‘lmos
ran a story written by a historian and re-
searcher on the POW issue in Southeast Asla
saying that tha Russian document contalns
inaccurate details. The story rejected the
Russian document as groundless. The writer
said that the Russian document was clumsy
and bore no practical details which did not
conform to practical reality.”

Following General Vessey's arrival back [n
Washington, the Vietnameee .‘found” an-
other 1ist in their archives pertaining to U.S.

to the United Bumbyﬂonhwounmo'n
January, 27, 1973. The cover page to the list,
both then and now, indicated that it was a
lst of “U.S. Pllots Captured in the Demo-
cratic Republic of Vietnam™ prepared in Jan-
uary, 1973 by North Vietnam's Ministry of
Natlonal Defense for delivery to the U.B. side
on the day of the signing of the Pirly Peace
Accords. :

In providlnc the document, Ho Xuan Dich,

head of the Vietnam Office for Seeking Miss-

ing Persons told Reuters:

“It will prove that the information in the
Russian -document is wrong. It's virtoally
the final report of American prisonérs cap-
tared in the Vietnam Democratic Republic
up to the U.8. Christmas bomblnc raids.”
(Source: Reuters, 421/83)

In reality, the list proved nothing and the
pablic was never told that it was the same,
exact list (including the same typing errors
and anomalies) given to the U.8. tn January,
1973. In fact, Reuters filed two news wire sto-

ries on the discovery stating, “Both sides

were elated by discovery of a dusty wartime

file earmarked for the bonfire that contained
a North Vietnamese list of prisoners of war -

(POWs) that the Amerlcuu had long
sought.”

Reuters quotsd the head of the U.S. Pacific -

Command's Joint Tasgk Force Full Account-
ing stationed in Hanol, Gary Flanagan, stat-
ing: ““This is great. I think 1€ really shows

they are cooperating with us."” In truth, it’

was an embarrassment that an American of-
ficial was reported to have made mehm com-

Cha ma——o
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ment concerning the discovery'' of the list
referred to by Mr. Dich.

The next day, April 22, 1993, Vietnam'’s offi-
cial Voloe of Vietnam broadcast two official
commentaries by the Army newspaper Nhan
Dan and the station itself, both entitled “‘a
Clumsy Cooked-Up Story.'*

'I‘ho first broadcast stated, in part:

partment and NASA hns affirmed that there
were no Amerioan astropauts captured in
Vietaam. The Russian document is also
wrong to say that Vietnam . divided the
American prisoners into three categories—
progressive, neutral, and reactionary.”

In the second Voice of Vietnam broadcast,
it was officially stated that the document
has been “‘allegedly” found- in the Russian
archives.

“‘After a careful check of this document, 1t
can be said in sure terms that the contents
of the document totally do not conform to

“Moreover, there was no meeting of the

Politbaro on 15 Beptember 1972. General

the period between 1961 and 1875 carried his
pame, Bay Tien, and that none of the
reports bore his real name, Tran Van Quang.
‘He himself read the Russian document and
found that the wording used in the document
was not Vietnamese style. Moreover. the
American POW issue was then under the re-
sponsibility of the VPA Political General De-
L.

*It should benoted that the man who found

this document, Mr. Morris, 18 not considered

by General Quang was in conformity with re-

“ [1] .

“Mr., Bnoo mnkun a proteasor at Rut-
wors Untversity, said the document was a
clumsy oooked-up story. There were no
events in the document that conform with
historical reality.”

In mid-May and late May. othu-UB offi-
cials visited Vietnam, this time from the
United Btates Congress, along with rep-
resentatives of three veterans organizations.
During meetings between the U.8. delegation
and General Quang. Quang stated that he
had been transferred from Vietnam to East
Germany for medical treatment at the same
time “Operation Homecoming' was con-
duoted, although this aspect was not dis-
cugsed further. -

Acoording to a report by Vietnam Veterans
of America, in a meeting they attended with
Foreign Minister Nguyen Manh Cam on May
31,1983, “Senator Korry requested a copy of
the Politburo calendar for that time period,
80 a comparison could be made. The Viet-
namees misunderstood the request, believing
Senator Kerry wanted Politburo minutes.
They becamse very upsst and almost canceled
the rest of the meeting. The misunderstand-
ing was correoted and order was restored.”
(Source: VVA report, June 1993)

On June 1, 1993, the delegation met with
General Tran Van Quang who again stated
that the document was not aunthentic. “‘He
provided a promotion document that sup-
posedly proves he was pot promoted to Lt.
General until 1974. . . . General Quang stat-
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od that although he helped formulate POW
policy during the French occupation, he
never had anything to do with POWs during
the war with the U.B. (Source: VVA report,
June 1983)

X. EPILOGUE. . .

From July 7. 1963 to July 11, 1853, I raised
several of the issues in this interim analysis
directly with Vietnamese officials, to in-
clude General Tran Quang. General Quang
denied any involvement with the presen-
tation, although he admitted. in response to
& question. having been present in northern
Vietnam to brief a politburo session in early
1972. He further denled any involvement with
the June 28, 1972 presentation on offensive
actions in the South and other non-POW
matters sven though it has been authenti-
cated by Russian General Volkogonov. Dur-
ing the meeting. General Quang was also
hesitant to discuss any of the detatls in the
September, 1972° report (on the 1,206 U.8.

. POWs) and maintained that since he did not

write it, there was nothing to discuss. He
even denled knowledge of the list of 368
POWSs given to Benator Kennedy in Decem-
ber, 1970 which had been referenced in the
Beptember, 1972 report.

At the same meeting. however, Mr. Nguyen
Xuan Phong. Acting Director of the Ameri-
cas Department of the Ministry of Foreign
Affairs, agreed to my request that the SRV
copduct a separate ‘‘line by line'’ review of
the Beptember, 1972 report to determine
which portions of the presentation were fac-
tual and which were not according to S8RV
information. For example, the Vietnamese
should certainly be able to tell us whether or

_not the references in the 1972 report to ear-

ller Politburo decisions on American POWs
are accurate or not (see page 6 of this analy-
sis). They shonld also be able to tell us when,
if at all, any presentations were given to
their politburo on the results of interroga-
tlons of American POWs and other related
matters. -

‘It 13 reported that t.he U.S. delegation to
Vietnam, which followed my visit, also had
the opportunity to meet with General
Quang, although I have not been briefed on
the contents of these discussions. I hope ths
U.8. side vontinued to push for more com-
plete explanations from the Vietnamese. As I
said earlier, Vietnamese statements to date
on this matter are wholly inadequate.

It has been twenty years since our cease-
fire agreement with Vietnam and the signing
of the ‘Paris Peace Accords. Unfortunately.
mahy troudbling questions persist concerning
our POW/MIAS, and human lives may well be
hanging in the balance. The break-up of the
Soviet Unjon and the formation of the Sen-
ate’s Belect Committee in 199] have led to re-
markable opportunities through the U.8./
Raussian Joint- Commission on POW/MIAS.
Our ability to obtain answers on our missing
and captured mea from the Vietnam War is
slowly, but dramatically, being enhanced, as
evidenced by the surfacing of the Quang re-
port and other reports from the Soviet ar-
chives,

. Our approach to the Quang report will be a
u'luml moment in our history. It should im-
pact our fature relations with our former ad-
versaries, and it will impact our natjon's
commitment to its own armed forces. I trust
the Joint Commission on POW/MIAs will
oontinue to pursue additional information
pertaining to these matters, and I hope that
the Vietnamess will make the decision to be
forthooming in explaining the Quang report.
For the sake of our POWs and MIAs, we must
not let this moment pass us by. If we do..
then we will never truly heal the wounds of
war, and I cannot see how we can ever begin
building - & sustalnable relationship. with
Vietnam,
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EXHIBIT 2
INFORMAL TRANSLATION OF PAGE 2
General Staff of the Armed Forces of the

' USSR, Main Intelligence Directorate. report

of Khoang Anya, Secretary of the Central
Committes of the WPV at the XX Plenum of
the CC WPV at the end of December 1970—
Beginning of 1971, transiation from Vietnam-
eose, handwritten note: indecipherable “p. II.
18''—Moscow, 1971.
TRANBLATION OF PAGE 11 [PRECEDING PAOES
ARE MISSING]

‘* = * gignificant quantity of the enémy. At
the same time, we avoided large losses on
our part. That's alsc a big victory for our
strategic policy.

Now another issue. When we published the
pames of the 368 American fliers who were
shot down and taken prisoner on the terri-
tory of the DRV, the opportunists started to
say that this was a concession to the Ameri-
cans. That's incorrect. It's not a concession,
but rather, a blow to Nixop politically. We
have gained much by this. The opportunists
are also saying that we are making oonces-
sions to the Americans at the Paris negotia-
tions also. That too is incorrect. Our policy
at the negotiations is correct.

‘Thus, as a whole, we are pursuing & correct
policy: although, we do make some mistakes.
The opportunists group seizes these mistakes
in order to prove that our party’'s eatire
course is erronsous. It's members say that
weo are afraid of difficulties and sacrifices.
That's incorrect. We are not afraid of sac-
rifices and difficulties, but snother thing too
must be taken into consideration: Our psople
have been engaged in continuous armed
struggle for 25 years. During this time a
great many people have perished. 1f we were
really afraid of sacrifices and difficulties, as
the opportunists claim, then we -would not
have started armed conflict. against -the
Americans. One must see the connection be--
tween victories and losses and objectively
evaluate the situation.

Naturally, we have" [mde] .mistakes in
military matters in South Vietnam, Laos
and Caimbodia, in matters of economic orga-

nization in the DRV and in matters of rais-

1ing the well-being of the population. We are
especially concerned about the question of
improving the living conditions of the peo-
ple. One must take into consideration that,
at present, our possibillties in this area are
limited, and therefore. this problem has not
yeot be solved. Besldes all else, the opportun-
ists are preventing us from solving it.

We clearly see ths opportunists’ mistakes
at this Plenum also. After thoroughly ana-
lyzing their views, we will give them a fight.
We reserve for them the right and the oppor-
tunity to admit their mistakes and to cor-
rect them. Theu they will mln be able to
serve thé party and the people.

TRANSLATION OF PAGE 18 (PRECEDING 7 PAGES
ARE MISSING] -

* * * to strike a crippling blow to our rear
area, he will gain a huge advantage in the
military theater of opérations.

Our losses from enemy air operations are
groat, yoet the enemy does not have the
strength through air operations alone to in-
fiict such daimage as to have ruinous con-
sequences: for us. However, if the enemy
using .its diversionary forces (and other
forces) launches an invasion of the North, we
will suffer heavy losses. Therefors, we must
raise our vigilance and repulse all of the ag-
gressors’ intrigues; since, in our opinion, the
enemy might launch such an invasion using
infantry and marines with powerful air and
naval support. We believe that the enemy’
will not try to invade the whole of North Vi--
etnamess territory but only those regions
where there are important communications
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which lead to Laos, Cambodia and South
Vietnam. Together with achleving their
military goals, the enemy expects that an in-
vasion would put political pressure op us,
would demoralize the people and would force
them to give up the struggle for the libera-
tiop of the South.

Now, T want to stop on oné more issue—
about the captured American fliers. The
total number of captured American fliers in
the DRV consists of 735 people. As I have al-
ready stated, we published the names of 368
fliers. That's our diplomatic ‘step. If the

-Americans will agree to withdraw their
forces from South Vietnam, we will, for a be-
ginning, return these 368 people to them; and
when the Americans finish withdrawing
their forces, we will give the rest back to
them. The issue of the captured American
ljers, by virtue of what has been said above,
is of great importance to us.

As a whole, speaking about the situation
in South Vietbam, I want to emphasize that
it is favarable for us, even though, we are en-
countering considerable difficulties. We will

try to do everything within our power to ob-

tain greater successes in South Vietnam.

In Cambodia, after the reactionary over-
throw on 18 March 1970 and after American-
Sailgon forces were moved into its {Cam-
bodian] territory * * * [remainder of docu-
ment is missing] -

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. The Senator from Michigan, Sen-
ator RIEGLE, 1s recognized.

Mr. RIEGLE. Mr. President, before
my colleague from the Northeast
leaves the floor, let me just say I ap-
preciate the efforts he has made on the
POW/MIA issue. I realize this 18 an area
of great controversy and difficulty and
that it has been a long struggle to try
to get to the bottom of what the truth
is. I have known the Senator for a long
time. I know he 1s pursuing this in the
way he thinks he needs do that. As a
Vietnam veteran himself, he certainly,
I think, is entitled to the support of
fellow Senators as he tries to sort
these issues out and get to the truth as
he sees it.

I just want to say to the Senator I
. supported him a long time back when
the effort was being made to form this
select committee. I appreciate the Sen-
ator’s efforts. 1 just want to say 8o
today.

Mr. SMITH. 1 appreciate the remarks
of the Senator from Michigan.

FACES OF THE HEALTH CARE
CRISIS

Mr. RIEGLE. Mr. President, I rise
today also to speak about the problem
of the health care crisis in America.
For the last year I have been coming to
the floor nearly every week that the
Senate has been In session to talk
about & Michigan family or an individ-
ual, or a business in my State,-facing
an unmanageable problem with respect
to health care requirements and at-
tempting to meet them in our society
at this time.

Last July, several of my colleagues
began joining me in this effort to also
come to the floor to talk about the im-
pact of the health care crisis on real
people in .their States across the coun-
try. So we have now heard a number of
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stories about individuals and famtilies,
and not only from Michigan but from
Nebraska, from Pennsylvania, Massa-
chusetts, Nevada—other States. I wel-
come my colleagues today who have
also been presenting their views, Sen-
ator DASCHLE and Senator WOFFORD,
who will be sharing, as well, compel-
ling stories from South Dakota and
from Pennsylvania that also illustrate
this problem.

Clearly, skyrocketing health care
costs have created a situation where no
one is secure under our current health
care system. More and more, we are
hearing stories about people who
thought they had protection against a
catastrophic health problem only to
find out that the coverage really was
not there when they actually needed it.

Today I want to talk about one such
family, the Kinbaums, from Grand
Rapids, MI. As young professionals,
Laura and Paul Kinbaum both had suc-
cessful careers and a happy family
until- tragedy changed their llvea for-
ever.

In June 1988, Paul contracbed vira.l
encephalitis at the young age of 3l.
This often deadly virus attacks and
kills the. cells in the frontal and tem-
poral lobes of the brain which control
speech and personality traits. There is
no recovery from the virus causing this
devastating illness because these brain
cells cannot be replaced once they are
destroyed. It i{s not possible to kill the
virus but only to control it and keep it
from attacking additional brain cells.

At the time Paul developed encepha-
litis he was finishing up his first year
in private practice as an acute care in-
tern. So he was actually in the practice
of medicine himself. He was just
months away from becoming & partner
in his own medical practice.

His wife Laura, who was 34-years-old,
was working as a freelance medical
writer. Their daughter Martha was 5
years old at the time. So that was the
situation as this terrible medical prob-
lem struck this family.

As a result of his illness, Paul suffers

from peychiatric problems related to’

delusion and memory loss in addition
to physical seizures. Because of these
symptoms, Paul can no longer live at
home with the family.

He now lives in an adult foster care
facility where he is supervised and re-
ceives medication to try to control his
condition. Paul has obviously lost the
capacity to practice medicine or even
lead a normal family life.

In addition to dealing with the t.rag-
edy of Paul’s {llness, Laura has had to
struggle to find health care coverage
for Paul and for the family. Prior to
his illness, Paul’s medical practice had
pald the premiums for the family’s
health care insurance. They lost their
benefits, including health insurance,
when Paul’s medical practice did not
renew his contract at the end of 1988,
several months after he was taken 1ll.
The family was able to take advantage
of COBRA health care benefits which
extended coverage for 18 months up
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through June 1990. And tn order to do
that, the family had to pay the pre-
mjums which were then costing $440 a
month, that, by itself, a major burden
when one wage earner in the family.
was no longer able to produce an in-
come, which was the case with Paul.

When the COBRA benefits expired,
Laura had the health insurance policy
transferred to an individual policy just
for Paul at the cost of over $350 a
month just to try to cover him. The
policy had a 25-percent copayment for
inpatient services and covered only
limited outpatient services. Laura had
to stay with this insurance company
for Paul because no other company
would be willing then to cover hia pre-
existing illness.

Even with- this coverage, Laura was
forced to hire an attorney in order to
get the insurance company that was
covering them to actually pay ita share
of Paul’'s medical expenses.

‘Although Laura’s out-of-pocket ex-
penses for Paul was high, she was for-
tunate in that several of the hospitals
and physicians that treated Paul wrote
off some of the cost of his health care
program. Laura now estimates the cost
of that amount of help that they got
which was absorbed by the medical sys-
tem at some $50,000. However, today
she is still struggling to pay off one
$7.000 debt to just one hospital.

Paul became eligible for Medicare in
December 1990 after having been per-
manently disabled for 2 years. Medi-
care provides better coverage and re-
quires less cost sharing than Paul's
previous plan. However, Laura contin-
ues to worry about coverage now for
her daughter and for herself.

After the family lost coverage
through Paul’s employer . and the
COBRA beneflts then ran out, Laura
purchased a separate health insurance
policy for herself and her -daughter.
After personally experiencing the bur-
den of Paul’'s medical expenses, Laura
chose & policy that was fairly com-

‘prehensive and required minimal cost

sharing, but she may not;be able to af-
ford such a comprehensive plan for her-
self and her daughter much longer. The
cost of this policy is currently over
$600 a month and is expected to go up
in the near future. That is just to cover
now the mother and the daughter.

So Laura fears a future of increasing
health care costs and decreasing bene-
fits and protections. She is self-em-
ployed and she is already burdened
with the cost of Paul’s foster care each
month, not to mention_the heartache
and the difficulty that this family is
struggling with. They do not know how
long she 18 going to be able to afford
the coverage for herself and her daugh-
ter, and she is haunted with how quick-
ly an unexpected illness can strike.
Just in the case of her own husband,
when things were going fine, bang, this
hits and their whole life 18 turned ap-
stde down. :

So the Kinbaums should not have to
struggle to find affordable insurance
for themselves in this country. They
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